-P POWELL

PERSISTENCE + PERFORMANCE

2019 ANNUAL REPORT




SINCE 1947, POWELL HAS BEEN A PROVIDER OF ENGINEERED
LARGE-SCALE POWER DISTRIBUTION, MONITORING AND CON

YEAR AFTER YEAR, AR
THE WORLD, ON JOBS
RANGING FROM DEEPW
DRILLING PLATFORMS T
MASS TRANSIT SUBSTA
ALWAYS DRIVEN BY TH
OF OUR CUSTOMERS.




STRENGTH IN NUMBERS

Following a period of cautious optimism
across our core end markets, 2019 proved

to be a solid year for Powell, producing
marked improvements both financially and
operationally. Based on the continued upturn
across most of our core markets, particularly
those supported by the abundance of
natural gas, we believe that we will sustain

our improved performance in an industry

recognized for its cyclical nature.

We are proud of the fact that we have not
only endured the recent market downturn,
but also faced challenges that tested our
resilience and inspired positive changes
throughout our business. We have emerged
a stronger, more robust, integrated and
resourceful company which is well positioned
for the future.







WE KNOW
WHERE WE ARE
GOING BECAUSE
WE KNOW

WHO WE ARE.

I am extremely proud of our teams across the company; we
delivered a very solid financial performance in fiscal 2019.
We finished the year in a strong cash position, while also
significantly improving revenue and earnings growth versus
the prior year. As in prior periods, our balance sheet reflects
diligent cash management across the business, while our
commercial team continues to pursue a healthy funnel of

global opportunities.

Importantly, the quality and mix of our backlog have
improved significantly compared to the prior year. This
result is driven largely by 1) our improved commercial
discipline balancing our risk against our ability to control and
deliver world-class electrical distribution solutions, and 2)
the macro impact of upgrades and expansions spanning our

core industrial end markets in oil, gas and petrochemicals.

SYNERGY, THE NEW DIFFERENTIATOR

Powell used the recent downturn to focus on one of our
core values: continuous improvement. We have made
concerted efforts to rebuild, streamline and balance the
utilization of people and facilities across the company.
Because of these efforts, we are well positioned to take

advantage of the current growth opportunities.

Looking forward, we are confident that Powell’s diverse

and capable workforce, organizational structure and global

infrastructure will provide the foundation for profitable
performance. The capacity to share knowledge, best
practices and workload across our global franchise provides
a platform to deliver value-added products and solutions

faster and more efficiently to our customers.

As our operations continue to evolve with technology and
industry dynamics, Powell has defined our approach to
sustainability through valued customer relationships as well
as risk indentification and mitigation. In this era of supply
chain uncertainty, our long-term focus on domestic sourcing
has reduced our exposure to global commodity instability
and supply chain disruptions. In addition, our close working
partnerships with our customers have helped us support
their efforts as they navigate increasingly larger-scale, more

complex projects.

NEXT-LEVEL INNOVATION

Throughout Powell’s history, our trademark has been
working with customers to develop solutions that add value
to their assets. We are continually developing new product
improvements as well as new applications and solutions

for our customers across all of our end markets, enhancing

safety, quality and reliability of their operations.

Powell has invested consistently in research and
development, regardless of market conditions, to drive
continued growth across the business and productivity for
our customers. Several examples illustrate our commitment

to continuous customer improvements.



POWELL LEADERSHIP
TAKES GREAT PRIDE

IN OUR EMPLOYEES AND
THE VALUE THEY BRING.

First, we have recently brought new electrical distribution
solutions to market, including products that support our
efforts to expand into select markets and geographies, as
well as cost-optimized designs that improve manufacturing
efficiency while still meeting or beating performance to
industry standards. Second, we have embraced industry
trends and are developing new digital-based products and
solutions that improve our customers’ ability to control
and extend the life of their assets. Digitization will deliver
dramatic safety and efficiency improvements across our
industry and considering this, we are focusing on these

applications in the market.

Third, we are thoughtfully exploring ways to expand our
service offerings and have opened service centers across
the globe to serve our customers more effectively. Keeping
our goals in mind, we continually seek opportunities to

expand our footprint regionally and operationally.

OUR PEOPLE = OUR POWER

Powell leadership takes great pride in our employees and
the value they bring—spanning from the lab, to the shop
floor, to our engineering desks. It is their competence,
dedication and can-do attitude that set us apart from

our competitors and peers alike. Our people continue to

make a difference.

During the oil and gas market downturn, we were careful
to retain critical skillsets and experienced employees. And
now, while we experience growth across the business, we
are doing everything possible to make this an even more

fulfilling place to work.

Powell’s workforce today is more diverse, skilled and
talented than ever before. Although much has evolved
throughout the company, what hasn’t changed is our
integral passion for doing things right, putting our customers

first and valuing our employees.

LEANING IN TO THE FUTURE

After more than 70 years in the marketplace, operating in

an industry that has recently endured great pressure and
dramatic shifts, Powell remains strong. Why? Because we have
always adapted to serve our customers in an industry that
values reliable project execution and is becoming ever more
technology-based and sophisticated each year. We are, and will

continue to strive to be, a valued, knowledgeable partner.

This momentum will continue—because we know who we
are, and we believe in our potential. As we always have,
Powell is looking ahead, prepared and still preparing for our

next phase of growth.

Brett A. Cope
President & CEO
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS;
RISK FACTORS
Unless otherwise indicated, all references to “we,” “us,” “our,” “Powell” or “the Company” include Powell Industries, Inc. and
its consolidated subsidiaries.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (Annual Report) includes forward-looking statements based on our current expectations, which
are subject to risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements include information concerning future results of operations and
financial condition. Statements that contain words such as “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “estimates,” “continue,”
“should,” “could,” “may,” “plan,” “project,” “predict,” “will” or similar expressions may be forward-looking statements. These
forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, and many factors could affect the future financial results and
condition of the Company. Factors that may have a material effect on our revenues, expenses and operating results include, among
other things, adverse business or market conditions, our ability to meet our customers’ scheduling requirements, our customers’
financial conditions and their ability to secure financing to support current and future projects, the availability and cost of materials
from suppliers, availability of skilled labor force, adverse competitive developments and changes in customer requirements as
well as those circumstances discussed under “Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors,” below. Accordingly, actual results may differ materially
from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report. Any forward-looking
statements made by or on our behalf are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995.

LENT3 2 ¢ 2

EEINT3 EEINT3 2 ¢

The forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report are based on current assumptions that we will continue to develop,
market, manufacture and ship products and provide services on a competitive and timely basis; that economic and competitive
conditions in our markets will not change in a materially adverse way; that we will accurately identify and meet customer needs
for products and services; that we will be able to hire and retain skilled laborers and key employees; that our products and capabilities
will remain competitive; that the financial markets and banking systems will remain stable and availability of credit will continue;
that risks related to shifts in customer demand are minimized and that there will be no material adverse change in the operations
or business of the Company. Assumptions relating to these factors involve judgments that are based on available information,
which may not be complete, and are subject to changes in many factors beyond the Company’s control that can materially affect
results. Because of these and other factors that affect our operating results, past financial performance should not be considered
an indicator of future performance, and investors should not use historical trends to anticipate results or trends in future periods.



PART I

Item 1. Business
Overview

Powell Industries, Inc. was incorporated in the state of Delaware in 2004 as a successor to a Nevada company incorporated in
1968. The Nevada company was the successor to a company founded by William E. Powell in 1947, which merged into the
Company in 1977. We are headquartered in Houston, Texas, and our major subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned, include:
Powell Electrical Systems, Inc.; Powell (UK) Limited; Powell Canada Inc. and Powell Industries International, B.V.

Our website is powellind.com. We make available, free of charge on or through our website, copies of our Annual Reports on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports, filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as is reasonably practicable after we electronically
file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Additionally, all of our reports filed with
the SEC are available via their website at http://www.sec.gov.

We develop, design, manufacture and service custom-engineered equipment and systems which (1) distribute, control and monitor
the flow of electrical energy and (2) provide protection to motors, transformers and other electrically powered equipment. Our
principal products include integrated power control room substations (PCRs®), custom-engineered modules, electrical houses (E-
Houses), traditional and arc-resistant distribution switchgear and control gear, medium-voltage circuit breakers, monitoring and
control communications systems, motor control centers and bus duct systems. These products are designed for application voltages
ranging from 480 volts to 38,000 volts and are used in oil and gas refining, onshore and offshore oil and gas production,
petrochemical, liquid natural gas terminals, pipeline, terminal, mining and metals, light rail traction power, electric utility, pulp
and paper and other heavy industrial markets. Our product scope includes designs tested to meet both U.S. and international
standards, under both the American National Standards Institute (ANSI) and International Electrotechnical Commission. We assist
customers by providing value-added services such as spare parts, field service inspection, installation, commissioning, modification
and repair, retrofit and retrofill components for existing systems and replacement circuit breakers for switchgear that is obsolete
or that is no longer produced by the original manufacturer. We seek to establish long-term relationships with the end users of our
systems as well as the design and construction engineering firms contracted by those end users. We believe that our culture of
safety and focus on customer satisfaction, along with our financial strength, allow us to continue to capitalize on opportunities in
the industries we serve.

References to Fiscal 2019, Fiscal 2018 and Fiscal 2017 used throughout this Annual Report relate to our fiscal years ended
September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Customers and Markets

Our principal customers are typically sophisticated users of large amounts of electrical energy that typically require a complex
combination of electrical components and systems. These customers' industries include oil and gas refining, onshore and offshore
oil and gas production, petrochemical, pipeline, terminal, mining and metals, light rail traction power, electric utility, pulp and
paper and other heavy industrial markets. Specific to the oil and gas sector, we serve both the upstream and downstream end
markets. Within the downstream segment, our primary customers typically are engaged in refining activities and/or leveraging
natural gas feedstocks for the production of petrochemical or Liquified Natural Gas (LNG) products. We have developed strong
relationships with our customers over the years and strive to maintain our position as a preferred service provider to solve our
customers' complex electrical needs.

Products and services are principally sold directly to the end user or to an engineering, procurement and construction (EPC) firm
on behalfofthe end user. Each project is specifically engineered and manufactured to meet the exact specifications and requirements
of'the individual customer. Powell’s expertise is in the design and engineering, manufacturing, project management and integration
of the various systems into a single custom-engineered deliverable. We market and sell our products and services, which are
typically awarded in competitive bid situations, to a wide variety of customers, governmental agencies, markets and geographic
regions. Contracts often represent large-scale and complex projects with an individual customer. By their nature, these projects
are typically nonrecurring. Thus, multiple and/or continuous projects of similar magnitude with the same customer may vary. As
such, the timing of large project awards may cause material fluctuations in our revenues and gross profits.

Occasionally our contracts may operate under a consortium or teaming arrangement. Typically, we enter into these arrangements

with reputable companies that we have conducted business with previously. These arrangements are generally made to leverage
competitive positioning or where scale and/or size dictates the use of such arrangement.
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Due to the nature and timing of large projects, a significant percentage of our revenues in a given period may result from one
specific contract or customer. Although we could be adversely impacted by a significant reduction in business volume from a
particular industry, we do not believe the loss of any specific customer would have a material adverse effect on our business.
However, from time to time, an individual manufacturing facility may have significant volume from one particular customer that
would be material to that facility. No customer accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated revenues in Fiscal 2019, Fiscal
2018 or Fiscal 2017.

Competition

We strive to be the supplier of choice for custom-engineered system solutions and services to a variety of customers and markets.
Our activities are predominantly in the oil and gas and electric utility industries, but also include other markets where customers
need to manage, monitor and control large amounts of electrical energy. The majority of our business is in support of capital
investment projects that are highly complex and competitively bid. Our customized systems are designed to meet the specifications
of our customers. Each system is designed, engineered and manufactured to the specific requirements of the particular application.
We consider our engineering, project management, systems integration and technical support capabilities vital to the success of
our business.

We believe our products and services, integration capabilities, technical and project management strengths, application engineering
expertise and specialty contracting experience, together with our responsiveness and flexibility to the needs of our customers and
our financial strength, give us a sustainable competitive advantage in our markets. We compete with a small number of multinational
competitors that sell to a broad industrial and geographic market, as well as smaller, regional competitors that typically have
limited capabilities and scope of supply. Some of our competitors are significantly larger and have substantially greater global
resources such as engineering, manufacturing and marketing. Our principal competitors include ABB, Eaton, Schneider and
Siemens. The competitive factors used during bid evaluation by our customers vary from project to project and may include
technical support and application expertise, engineering and manufacturing capabilities, equipment rating, delivered value,
scheduling and price. While projects are typically non-recurring, a significant portion of our business is from repeat customers
and many times involves third-party EPC firms hired by the end user and with whom we also have long, established relationships.
Ultimately, our competitive position is dependent upon our ability to provide quality custom-engineered products, services and
systems on a timely basis at a competitive price.

Backlog

Backlog represents management's estimate of the remaining unsatisfied performance obligation from work to be performed on
our firm orders under uncompleted contracts and customer purchase orders, including approved change orders as well as new
contractual agreements on which work has not begun. Our backlog will be recognized as revenue as we complete the remaining
performance obligations. Our backlog does not include service- and maintenance-type contracts for which we have the rights to
invoice as services are performed. Typically, our contracts may have an early termination for convenience clause at the discretion
of our customers; however, most of these contracts typically provide for the reimbursement of our costs incurred and a reasonable
margin in the event of such early termination. Our methodology for determining backlog may not be comparable to the methodology
used by other companies.

Our backlog at September 30, 2019 totaled $419.0 million compared to $260.9 million at September 30, 2018. Backlog improved
primarily due to increased demand from our customers in our core oil and gas and petrochemical markets. We anticipate that
approximately $344.6 million of Fiscal 2019 ending backlog will be fulfilled during our fiscal year ending September 30, 2020.
Backlog may not be indicative of future operating results as orders in our backlog may be cancelled or modified by our customers
and may not be indicative of continuing revenue performance over future fiscal quarters.

Raw Materials and Suppliers

The principal raw materials used in our operations include steel, copper and aluminum and various electrical components. Material
costs represented 47% of revenues in Fiscal 2019, Fiscal 2018 and Fiscal 2017. Unanticipated changes in material requirements,
market conditions and disruptions in the supply chain or price increases could impact production costs and affect our consolidated
results of operations.



Our supply base for certain key components and raw materials is limited. Changes in our design to accommodate similar components
from other suppliers could be implemented to resolve a supply problem related to a sole-sourced component. In this circumstance,
supply problems could result in delays in our ability to meet commitments to our customers. We believe that sources of supply
for raw materials and components are generally sufficient, and we do not believe a temporary shortage of materials will cause any
significant adverse impact in the future. While we are not dependent on any one supplier for the majority of our raw materials,
we are highly dependent on our suppliers in order to meet commitments to our customers. While we have not experienced significant
or unusual issues in the purchase of key raw materials or components in the past three fiscal years, we continue to monitor the
availability and price of components and raw materials on a regular basis, as well as any potential impact on our operations.

Our business is subject to the effects of changing material prices. During the last three fiscal years, we have not experienced
significant price volatility for raw materials or component parts used in the production of our products. While the cost outlook for
commodities used in the production of our products is not certain, we believe we can manage this volatility through contract
pricing adjustments, with material-cost predictive estimating and by actively pursuing internal cost reduction efforts. We did not
enter into any derivative contracts to hedge our exposure to commodity price changes in Fiscal 2019, 2018 or 2017.

Employees

At September 30, 2019, we had 2,312 full-time employees located primarily in the U.S., Canada and the U.K. Our employees are
not represented by unions, and we believe that our relationship with our employees is good. Periodically, demand for qualified
personnel increases in certain geographic areas due to increased construction or economic activity. We continue to monitor our
demand for skilled and unskilled labor and provide training and competitive compensation packages in an effort to attract and
retain skilled employees.

Intellectual Property

While we hold various patents, trademarks, servicemarks, copyrights and licenses, we do not consider any individual intellectual
property to be material to our consolidated business operations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business is subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, the risks and uncertainties described
below. If any of the following risks occur, the business's financial condition, cash flows, liquidity and results of operations may
be negatively impacted, and we may not be able to achieve our quarterly, annual or long-range plans. Additional risks and
uncertainties not known to us or not described below may also negatively impact our business and results of operations. This
Annual Report also includes statements reflecting assumptions, expectations, projections, intentions or beliefs about future events
that are intended as “forward-looking statements” under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and should be read
in conjunction with the discussion under “Forward-Looking Statements,” above.

Risk Factors Related to our Business and Industry

Our business is subject to the cyclical nature of the end markets that we serve. This has had, and may continue to have, an
adverse effect on our future operating results.

The end markets that we serve have historically been, and will continue to be vulnerable to general downturns, which in turn could
materially and adversely affect the demand for our products and services. Our customer projects, budgets for capital expenditures
and the need for our services have in the past, and may in the future, be adversely affected by among other things, poor economic
conditions, low commodity prices, political uncertainties, and currency fluctuations. These variables may impact the number and/
or the amount of new awards, delays in the timing of awards or potential cancellation of projects. The uncertainty of our contract
award timing is outside of our control and can also present difficulties in matching workforce size with contract requirements. In
some cases, we bear and maintain the cost of a ready workforce that may be larger than necessary in anticipation of future workforce
needs. If an expected contract is delayed or not received, we may incur additional costs in staff or facility redundancy that could
have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.



Our industry is highly competitive.

Some of our competitors are significantly larger and have substantially greater global resources such as engineering, manufacturing
and marketing resources, and at various times, may be a customer or supplier on any given project. Competition in the industry
depends on a number of factors, including the number of projects available, technical ability, production capacity, location and
price. Certain of our competitors may have lower cost structures and may, therefore, be able to provide their products or services
at lower prices. Similarly, we cannot be certain that we will be able to maintain or enhance our competitive position within our
industry, maintain our customer base at current levels, increase our customer base or continue to provide technologically superior
products at a competitive price. New companies may enter the markets in which we compete, or industry consolidation may occur,
further increasing competition in our markets. Our failure to compete effectively could adversely affect future revenues and have
an adverse impact on our results of operations.

Technological innovations by competitors may make existing products and production methods obsolete.

All of the products that we manufacture and sell depend upon the best available technology for success in the marketplace. The
industries in which we operate are characterized by intense competition and are highly sensitive to technological innovation and
customer requirements. It is possible for competitors (both domestic and international) to develop products or production methods
that will make current products or methods obsolete or at a minimum hasten their obsolescence; therefore, we cannot be certain
that our competitors will not develop the expertise, experience and resources to provide products and services that are superior in
both price and quality. Our future success will depend, in part, on our ability to anticipate and offer products that meet changing
customer specifications. Failure to successfully develop new products, or to enhance existing products, could result in the loss of
existing customers to competitors, the inability to attract new business or an overall reduction in our competitive position, any of
which may adversely affect our business or results of operations.

Unforeseen difficulties with expansions, relocations or consolidations of existing facilities could adversely affect our operations.

From time to time we may decide to enter new markets, build or lease additional facilities, expand our existing facilities, relocate
or consolidate one or more of our operations or exit a facility we may own or lease. Increased costs and production delays arising
from the staffing, relocation, sublease, expansion or consolidation of our facilities could adversely affect our business and results
of operations.

Quality problems with our products could harm our reputation and erode our competitive position.

The success of our business depends upon the quality of our products and our relationships with customers. In the event that one
of our products fails to meet our customers' standards or safety requirements or fails to operate effectively, our reputation could
be harmed, which would adversely affect our marketing and sales efforts. We provide warranties to our customers for our products
and the cost to satisfy customer warranty claims, which may include, among other things, costs for the repair or replacement of
products, could adversely impact our business and results of operations.

Growth and product diversification through strategic acquisitions involves a number of risks.

Our strategy includes the pursuit of growth and product diversification through the acquisition of companies or assets and entering
into joint ventures that will enable us to expand our geographic coverage and product and service offerings. We periodically review
potential acquisitions; however, we may be unable to successfully implement this strategy. Acquisitions involve certain risks,
including difficulties in the integration of operations and systems; failure to realize cost savings; the termination of relationships
by key personnel and customers of the acquired company and a failure to add additional employees to handle the increased volume
of business. Additionally, financial and accounting challenges and complexities in areas such as valuation, tax planning, treasury
management and financial reporting from our acquisitions may impact our operating results. Due diligence may not be adequate
orreveal all risks and challenges associated with our acquisitions. Companies that we acquire may not achieve revenues, profitability
or cash flows that we expected, or that ultimately justify the investment. It is possible that impairment charges resulting from the
overpayment for an acquisition may negatively impact our results of operations. Financing for acquisitions may require us to
obtain additional equity or debt financing, which may not be available on attractive terms, if at all, or which may be restricted
under the terms of our credit facility or other financing arrangements. Any failure to successfully complete or successfully integrate
acquisitions could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.



The departure of key personnel could disrupt our business.

We depend on the continued efforts of our executive officers, senior management and other key professionals. We cannot be certain
that any individual will continue in such capacity for any particular period of time. The loss of key personnel, or the inability to
hire and retain qualified employees, could negatively impact our ability to perform and manage our business.

Our business requires skilled and unskilled labor, and we may be unable to attract and retain qualified employees.

Our ability to maintain our productivity at competitive levels may be limited by our ability to employ, train and retain personnel
necessary to meet our requirements. We face significant competition for qualified personnel in our industry. We may experience
shortages of qualified personnel such as engineers, project managers and select skilled trades. We cannot be certain that we will
be able to maintain an adequate skilled labor force or key technical personnel necessary to operate efficiently and to support our
growth strategy and operations. We cannot be certain that our labor costs will not increase as a result of a shortage in the supply
of skilled, unskilled and technical personnel. Labor shortages or increased labor costs could impair our ability to maintain our
business, meet customer commitments or grow our revenues, and may adversely impact our business and results of operations.

We are exposed to risks relating to the use of subcontractors on some of our projects.

We hire subcontractors to perform work on some projects and sometimes depend on third-party suppliers to provide equipment
and materials necessary to complete or ship our products. If our subcontractors do not perform as expected for any reason, we
may experience delays in completing our projects or incur additional costs. In addition, we may have disputes with these independent
subcontractors arising from, among other things, the quality and timeliness of the work they have performed. Any of these factors
could adversely impact our business and results of operations.

Misconduct by our employees or subcontractors, or a failure to comply with laws or regulations, could harm our reputation,
damage our relationships with customers and subject us to criminal and civil enforcement actions.

Misconduct, fraud, non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations, or other improper activities by one or more of our
employees or subcontractors could have a significant negative impact on our business and reputation. While we take precautions
to prevent and detect these activities, such precautions may not be effective and are subject to inherent limitations, including human
error and fraud. Acts of misconduct, or our failure to comply with applicable laws or regulations, could subject us to fines and
penalties, harm our reputation, damage our relationships with customers and could adversely impact our business and results of
operations.

Unsatisfactory safety performance may subject us to penalties, negatively impact customer relationships, result in higher
operating costs, and negatively impact employee morale and turnover.

We place great emphasis on workplace safety in our entire organization through various safety initiatives and training. We have
both indoor and outdoor manufacturing facilities which are susceptible to numerous industrial safety risks that can lead to personal
injury, loss of life, damage to property and equipment, as well as potential environmental damage. While we take every precaution
to avoid incidents, we have experienced accidents in the past and may again in the future, which can negatively affect our safety
record. A poor safety record can harm our reputation with existing and potential customers, jeopardize our relationship with
employees and could adversely impact our business and results of operations.

Catastrophic events could disrupt our business.

The occurrence of catastrophic events, ranging from natural disasters to health epidemics, to acts of war and terrorism, could
disrupt or delay our ability to operate our business and complete projects for our customers and could potentially expose us to
third-party liability claims. We may declare the existence of a force majeure event under our contracts in certain situations; however,
a customer may dispute our force majeure claim, which may result in additional liabilities. Losses arising from such events may
or may not be fully covered by our various insurance policies or may be subject to deductibles or exceed coverage limits. In
addition, such events could result in temporary or long-term delays and/or cancellations of orders for raw materials from our
suppliers that could impact our project execution. These situations or other disruptions are outside of our control and may adversely
impact our business and results of operations.



Risk Factors Related to our Financial Condition and Markets

Economic uncertainty and financial market conditions may impact our customer base, suppliers and backlog.

Various factors drive demand for our products and services, including the price and demand for oil and gas, capital expenditures,
economic forecasts and financial markets. Unanticipated increases in raw material requirements or prices, the imposition of tariffs,
and changes in supplier availability or supplier consolidation, could increase production costs and adversely affect profitability.
Uncertainty regarding these factors could impact our customers and severely impact the demand for projects and orders for our
products and services. Additionally, the loss of significant volume from one particular customer at one of our facilities could
adversely impact the operating results of that facility. If one or more of our suppliers or subcontractors experiences difficulties
that result in a reduction or interruption in supply to us, or they fail to meet our manufacturing requirements, our business could
be adversely impacted until we are able to secure alternative sources. Furthermore, our ability to maintain or expand our business
would be limited in the future if we are unable to maintain or increase our bonding capacity or our bank credit facility on favorable
terms or at all. Similarly, disruptions in the capital markets may also adversely impact our customer's ability to finance projects,
which could result in contract cancellations or delays. These disruptions could lead to reduced demand for our products and services
and could have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our backlog is subject to unexpected adjustments and cancellations and, therefore, may not be a reliable indicator of our future
earnings.

We have a backlog of uncompleted contracts. Backlog represents management's best estimate of the remaining performance
obligation from work to be performed on uncompleted contracts, including new contractual agreements on which work has not
begun. From time to time, projects are cancelled or modified, and while we may be reimbursed for certain costs, we may not have
a contractual right to the total revenue reflected in our backlog. In addition to our being unable to recover certain direct costs,
cancelled projects may also result in additional unrecoverable costs due to the underutilization of our assets. Accordingly, the
amounts recorded in backlog may not be a reliable indicator of our future operating results and may not be indicative of continuing
revenue performance over future fiscal quarters.

Revenues recognized over time from our fixed-price contracts could result in volatility in our results of operations.

As discussed in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimates” and in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report, the
majority of our revenues are recognized over time. Revenues are recognized as work is performed and costs are incurred. The
revenue earned to date is calculated by multiplying the total contract price by the percentage of performance to date, which is
based on total costs incurred to date compared to the total estimated costs at completion. The determination of the revenue recognized
requires the use of estimates of costs to be incurred for the performance of the contract. The cost estimation process is based upon
the professional knowledge and experience of our management teams, engineers, project managers and financial professionals.
We bear the risk of cost overruns in most of our contracts, which may result in reduced profits. Contract losses are recognized in
full when determined, and estimates of revenue and cost to complete are adjusted based on ongoing reviews of estimated contract
performance. Previously recorded estimates of revenues and costs are adjusted as the project progresses and circumstances change.
In certain circumstances, it is possible that such adjustments to costs and revenues could have an adverse impact on our results of
operations.

Many of our contracts contain performance obligations that may subject us to penalties or additional liabilities.

Many of our customer contracts have schedule and performance obligation clauses that, if we fail to meet, could subject us to
penalty provisions, liquidated damages or claims against the company or our outstanding letters of credit or performance bonds. In
addition, some customer contracts stipulate protection against our gross negligence or willful misconduct. Each individual contract
defines the conditions under which the customer may make a claim against us. It is possible that adjustments arising from such
claims, or our failure to manage our contract risk, may not be covered by insurance and could have an adverse impact on our
results of operations.



Fluctuations in the price and supply of materials used to manufacture our products may reduce our profits and could adversely
impact our ability to meet commitments to our customers.

Our material costs represented 47% of our consolidated revenues for Fiscal 2019. Unanticipated increases in raw material
requirements or prices, the imposition of tariffs, and changes in supplier availability or supplier consolidation, could increase
production costs and adversely affect profitability as fixed-price contracts may prohibit our ability to charge the customer for the
increase in raw material prices. We purchase a wide variety of materials and component parts from various suppliers to manufacture
our products, including steel, aluminum, copper and various components. Our supply base for certain key components and raw
materials is limited and may come from a single supplier. If we are unable to obtain key components and raw materials from these
suppliers, the key components and raw materials may not be readily available from other suppliers or available with acceptable
terms. Our success depends on our ability to meet customer commitments and could be negatively impacted if a supplier experiences
a disruption or discontinuance in their operations. The time and effort associated with the selection and qualification of a new
supplier and changes in our design and testing to accommodate similar components from other suppliers could be significant.
Additionally, we rely on certain competitors for key materials used in our products. This could negatively impact our ability to
manufacture our products if the relationships change or become adversarial.

Obtaining surety bonds, letters of credit, bank guarantees, or other financial assurances, may be necessary for us to successfully
bid on and obtain certain contracts.

We are often required to provide our customers security for the performance of their projects in the form of surety bonds, letters
of credit or other financial assurances. Our continued ability to obtain surety bonds, letters of credit or other financial assurances
will depend on our capitalization, working capital and past performance. We are also dependent on the overall bonding capacity,
pricing and terms available in the surety markets. As such, we cannot guarantee our ability to maintain a sufficient level of bonding
capacity in the future. The restriction, reduction or termination of our surety bond agreements could limit our ability to bid on new
opportunities and would require us to issue letters of credit under our bank facilities in lieu of surety bonds, thereby reducing
availability under our credit facility, which could have an adverse impact on our business and results of operations.

Failure to remain in compliance with covenants or obtain waivers or amendments under our credit agreement could adversely
impact our business.

Our credit agreement contains various financial covenants and restrictions, which are described in Note G of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Our ability to remain in compliance with such financial covenants and restrictions may be
affected by factors beyond our control, including general or industry-specific economic downturns. If we fail to remain in
compliance with such covenants and restrictions, absent a modification or waiver, this could result in an event of default under
the credit agreement. Among other things, the occurrence of an event of default could limit our ability to obtain additional financing
or result in acceleration of outstanding amounts under the credit agreement or a termination of the agreement, any of which could
have an adverse impact on our liquidity, business and results of operations.

We extend credit to customers in conjunction with our performance under fixed price contracts which subjects us to potential
credit risks.

We typically agree to allow our customers to defer payment on projects until certain milestones have been met or until the projects
are substantially completed, and customers typically withhold some portion of amounts due to us as retainage. Our payment
arrangements subject us to potential credit risk related to changes in business and economic factors affecting our customers,
including material changes in our customers' revenues or cash flows. If we are unable to collect amounts owed to us, or retain
amounts paid to us, our cash flows would be reduced, and we could experience losses if those amounts exceed current allowances.
Any of these factors could adversely impact our business and results of operations.
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We carry insurance against many potential liabilities, but our management of risk may leave us exposed to unidentified or
unanticipated risks.

Although we maintain insurance policies with respect to our related exposures, including certain casualty, property, business
interruption and self-insured medical and dental programs, these policies contain deductibles, self-insured retentions and limits
of coverage. In addition, we may not be able to continue to obtain insurance at commercially reasonable rates or may be faced
with liabilities not covered by insurance, such as, but not limited to, environmental contamination or terrorist attacks. We estimate
our liabilities for known claims and unpaid claims and expenses based on information available as well as projections for claims
incurred but not reported. However, insurance liabilities, some of which are self-insured, are difficult to estimate due to various
factors. If any of our insurance policies or programs are not effective in mitigating our risks, we may incur losses that are not
covered by our insurance policies, that are subject to deductibles or that exceed our estimated accruals or our insurance policy
limits, which could adversely impact our business and results of operations.

Our international operations expose us to risks that are different from, or possibly greater than, the risks we are exposed to
domestically and may adversely affect our operations.

Revenues associated with projects located outside of the U.S., including revenues generated from our operations in the U.K. and
Canada, accounted for approximately 21% of our consolidated revenues in Fiscal 2019. While our manufacturing facilities are
located in developed countries with historically stable operating and fiscal environments, our business and results of operations
could be adversely affected by a number of factors, including: political and economic instability; social unrest, acts of terrorism,
force majeure, war or other armed conflict; inflation; changes in tax laws; the application of foreign labor regulations; currency
fluctuations, devaluations and conversion restrictions and/or governmental activities that limit or disrupt markets, restrict payments
or limit the movement of funds and trade restrictions or economic embargoes imposed by the U.S. or other countries and the U.K.'s
referendum to withdraw from the European Union. Additionally, the compliance with foreign and domestic import and export
regulations and anti-corruption laws, such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, General Data Protection Regulation, or
similar laws of other jurisdictions outside the U.S., could adversely impact our ability to compete for contracts in such jurisdictions.
Moreover, the violation of such laws or regulations, by us or our representatives, could result in severe penalties including monetary
fines, criminal proceedings and suspension of export privileges.

Additionally, fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates may impact our financial results. The functional currency of our foreign
operations is typically the currency of the country in which the foreign operation is located. Accordingly, our financial performance
is subject to fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates relative to the U.S. dollar.

Failures or weaknesses in our internal controls over financial reporting could adversely affect our ability to report on our
financial condition and results of operations accurately and/or on a timely basis.

We are required to comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0of 2002, which requires, among other things, an assessment
by our management of our internal control over financial reporting. Preparing our financial statements involves a number of
complex processes, many of which are performed manually and are dependent upon individual data input or review. We are
continually working to maintain and strengthen our internal controls over financial reporting, however, any system of controls
has limitations, including the possibility of human error, the circumvention or overriding of controls and/or fraud. Our failure to
maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting could adversely affect our ability to report our financial results on a
timely and accurate basis, which could result in a loss of investor confidence in our financial reports or have an adverse impact
on our business and results of operations.

A failure in our business systems or cyber security attacks on any of our facilities, or those of third parties, could adversely
affect our business and our internal controls.

Our organization is dependent upon the proper functioning of our business systems that support our production, engineering,
human resources, estimating, finance, and project management functions. If any of our financial, operational, or other data
processing systems fail or have other significant shortcomings due to natural disaster, power loss, telecommunications failures,
cyber security attacks or other similar events, our business or results of operations could be adversely affected. In addition, despite
implementation of security measures, our business systems may be vulnerable to computer viruses, cyber-attacks, the accidental
release of sensitive information and other unauthorized access. These failures of our business systems or security breaches could
impact our customers, employees and reputation and result in a disruption to our operations or in legal claims or proceedings. A
material network breach of our business systems could involve the theft of intellectual property, financial data, employee or
customer data, which may be used by competitors. We rely on third-party systems which could also suffer operational system
failure or cyber-attacks. Any of these occurrences could disrupt our business, result in potential liability or reputational damage
or otherwise have an adverse effect on our business or results of operations.
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Network security and internal control measures have been implemented to address these risks and disruptions to our business.
However, our portfolio of hardware and software products, solutions and services and information contained within our enterprise
information technology (IT) systems may be vulnerable to damage or disruption caused by circumstances beyond our control such
as catastrophic events, cyber-attacks, other malicious activities from unauthorized third parties, power outages, natural disasters,
computer system or network failures or computer viruses. Any significant disruption or failure could damage our reputation or
have a material adverse effect on our business and our results of operations.

Risk Factors Related to our Common Stock

Our stock price could decline or fluctuate significantly due to unforeseen circumstances. These fluctuations may cause our
stockholders to incur losses.

Our stock price could fluctuate or decline due to a variety of factors including, but not limited to, the risks factors described herein,
the timing and cancellation of projects, changes in our estimated costs to complete projects, investors' opinions of the sectors and
markets in which we operate or failure of our operating results to meet the expectations of securities analysts or investors which
could reduce investor confidence. These factors could adversely affect our business, and the trading price of our common stock
could decline significantly.

There can be no assurance that we will declare or pay future dividends on our common stock.

Our Board of Directors has approved a regular dividend since Fiscal 2014. The declaration, amount and timing of future dividends
are subject to capital availability and determinations by our Board of Directors that cash dividends are in the best interest of our
stockholders and are in compliance with all respective laws and applicable agreements. Our ability to declare and pay dividends
will depend upon, among other factors, our financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, current and anticipated expansion
plans, requirements under Delaware law and other factors that our Board of Directors may deem relevant. A reduction in or
elimination of our dividend payments could have a material negative effect on our stock price.

Risk Factors Related to Legal and Regulatory Matters

Our operations could be adversely impacted by the effects of government regulations.

Changes in policy, laws or regulations, including those affecting oil and gas exploration and development activities and the resulting
decisions by customers and other industry participants could reduce demand for our products and services, which would have a
negative impact on our operations. Various regulations have been implemented around the world related to safety and certification
requirements applicable to oil and gas drilling and production activities, and we cannot predict whether operators will be able to
satisfy these requirements. Further, we cannot predict future changes in any country in which we operate and how those changes
may affect our ability to perform projects in those regions.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act requires disclosure of use of "conflict" minerals mined from
the Democratic Republic of Congo and adjoining countries and our efforts to prevent the use of such minerals. In our industry,
conflict minerals are most commonly found in metals. As there may be only a limited number of suppliers offering "conflict free"
metals, we cannot be sure that we will be able to obtain necessary metals in sufficient quantities or at competitive prices. Also,
we may face challenges with our customers and suppliers if we are unable to sufficiently verify that the metals used in our products
are "conflict free."

Changes in tax laws and regulations may change our effective tax rate and could have a material effect on our financial results.

We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions. A change in tax laws, deductions or credits, treaties
or regulations, or their interpretation, in the countries in which we operate could result in a higher tax rate on our pre-tax income,
which could have a material impact on our net income. We are regularly under audit by tax authorities, and our tax estimates and
tax positions could be materially affected by many factors including the final outcome of tax audits and related litigation, the
introduction of new tax accounting standards, legislation, regulations and related interpretations, our global mix of earnings, the
extent to which deferred tax assets are realized and changes in uncertain tax positions. A significant increase in our statutory tax
rates could have a material impact on our net income or loss and cash flow.
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Actual and potential claims, lawsuits and proceedings could ultimately reduce our profitability and liquidity and weaken our
financial condition.

We could be named as a defendant in future legal proceedings that claim damages in connection with the operation of our business.
Most of the actions against us arise out of the normal course of our performing services or manufacturing equipment. From time
to time, we may be a plaintiff in legal proceedings against customers in which we seek to recover payment of contractual amounts
due to us, as well as claims for increased costs incurred by us. When appropriate, we establish provisions against certain legal
exposures, and we adjust such provisions from time to time according to ongoing developments related to each exposure, as well
as any potential recovery from our insurance, if applicable. If, in the future, our assumptions and estimates related to such exposures
prove to be inadequate or wrong, or our insurance coverage is insufficient, our business and results of operations could be adversely
affected. In addition, claims, lawsuits and proceedings may harm our reputation or divert management resources away from
operating our business. Losses arising from such events may or may not be fully covered by our various insurance policies or may
be subject to deductibles or exceed coverage limits.

Changes in and compliance with environmental laws could adversely impact our financial results.

Private lawsuits or enforcement actions by federal, state, provincial or foreign regulatory agencies may materially increase our
costs. Certain environmental laws may make us potentially liable for the remediation of contamination at or emanating from our
properties or facilities. Although we seek to obtain indemnities against liabilities relating to historical contamination at the facilities
we own or operate, we cannot provide any assurance that we will not incur liabilities relating to the remediation of potential
contamination, including contamination we did not cause. These potential environmental liabilities may or may not be fully covered
by our various insurance policies and may adversely affect our business and results operations.

Provisions of our charter documents or Delaware law could delay or prevent an acquisition of our company, even if the
acquisition would be beneficial to our stockholders, and could make it more difficult to change management.

Because we are governed by Delaware law, we are subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation
Law. These provisions prohibit a publicly held Delaware corporation from engaging in a business combination with an interested
stockholder, generally a person who, together with its affiliates, owns, or within the last three years has owned, 15% of our voting
stock, for a period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder, unless the
business combination is approved in a prescribed manner.

In addition, provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation and bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a merger, acquisition or
other change in control that stockholders might otherwise consider favorable, including transactions in which stockholders might
otherwise receive a premium for their shares. These provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempt by our stockholders to replace
or remove our current management by making it more difficult to replace or remove our board of directors.

Significant developments arising from recent U.S. Government proposals concerning tariffs and other economic proposals
could adversely impact our business.

As aresult of recent changes to U.S. administration policy and recent U.S. government proposals, there may be greater restrictions
and economic disincentives on international trade that could include significant increases in tariffs on goods. Changes in U.S. or
international social, political, regulatory and economic conditions or in laws and policies governing foreign trade, manufacturing,
development and investment in the territories and countries where we currently develop and sell our products, and any negative
sentiment towards the U.S. as a result of such changes, could adversely impact our business and results of operations.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We own our principal manufacturing and fabrication facilities and periodically lease smaller facilities throughout the U.S., Canada
and the U.K. Our facilities are generally located in areas that are readily accessible to materials and labor pools and are maintained
in good condition. These facilities are expected to meet our needs for the foreseeable future.

Our principal locations as of September 30, 2019, are as follows:

Approximate
Location Description Acres Square Footage
Houston, TX Corporate office and manufacturing facility 21.4 428,515
Houston, TX Office and manufacturing facility 534 290,554
Houston, TX Office, fabrication facility and yard 63.3 82,320
North Canton, OH Office and manufacturing facility 8.0 115,200
Northlake, IL Office and manufacturing facility 10.0 103,500
Bradford, U.K. Office and manufacturing facility 7.9 129,200
Acheson, Alberta, Canada Office and manufacturing facility 20.1 330,168

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Weare involved in various legal proceedings, claims and other disputes arising from our commercial operations, projects, employees
and other matters which, in general, are subject to uncertainties and in which the outcomes are not predictable. Although we can
give no assurances about the resolution of pending claims, litigation or other disputes and the effect such outcomes may have on
us, management believes that any ultimate liability resulting from the outcome of such proceedings, to the extent not otherwise
provided or covered by insurance, will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of
operations or liquidity.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART 11
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Market (NASDAQ) under the symbol “POWL.”
As of December 2, 2019, the closing price of our common stock on the NASDAQ was $41.07 per share. As of December 2, 2019,
there were 261 stockholders of record of our common stock. All common stock held in street names is recorded in the Company’s

stock register as being held by one stockholder.

See “Part III, Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters” of
this Annual Report for information regarding securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans.

Dividend Policy

The Board anticipates declaring cash dividends in future quarters; however, there is no assurance as to future dividends or their
amounts because they depend on future earnings, capital requirements, financial condition and debt covenants.
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related information shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the
SEC, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, each as amended, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing.

The following graph compares, for the period from October 1, 2014 to September 30, 2019, the cumulative stockholder return on
our common stock with the cumulative total return on the NASDAQ Market Index, the new Industrial Electrical Equipment Group
(a select group of peer companies — Altra Industrial Motion Corp.; Ameresco, Inc.; AZZ Inc.; Belden Inc.; Daktronics Inc.;
EnerSys; Franklin Electric Co, Inc.; Littelfuse Inc.; LSI Industries Inc.; McDermott International, Inc.; Preformed Line Products;
A O Smith Corporation; Thermon Group Holdings and Woodward, Inc.) and the old Industrial Electrical Equipment Group (Altra
Industrial Motion Corp.; Ameresco, Inc.; AZZ Inc.; Belden Inc.; Daktronics Inc.; Electro Scientific Industries, Inc.;
EnerSys; Franklin Electric Co, Inc.; Littelfuse Inc.; LSI Industries Inc.; Preformed Line Products; A O Smith Corporation and
Woodward, Inc.). The comparison assumes that $100 was invested on October 1, 2014, in our common stock, the NASDAQ
Market Index and each of the new and old Industrial Electrical Equipment Group, and that all dividends were re-invested. The
stock price performance reflected on the following graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data shown below for the past five years was derived from our audited financial statements, adjusted for
discontinuing operations. The historical results are not necessarily indicative of the operating results to be expected in the future.
The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with “Part II, [tem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and the consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Annual
Report.

Years ended September 30,

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Statement of Operations: (In thousands, except per share data)
REVEIUES ...cveiieiiitiiiiitieieeie ettt $ 517,180 $ 448,716 $395911 $ 565,243 $ 661,858
Cost 0f 200dSs SOId .....ccueeuiriiiiiieieeee e 430,204 383,361 345,142 459,038 553,597
GTOSS PIOTIE. vttt sttt ettt sttt see e e naens 86,976 65,355 50,769 106,205 108,261
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses............c.ecveeeennenne. 69,950 66,768 61,524 74,924 76,801
Research and development €Xpenses .........c.cceoverueerueriienieeeenuenns 6,327 6,717 6,906 6,731 6,980
Amortization of intangible assets..........ccoecerieriercieneriieneeienenn 177 205 355 352 435
INSUTANCE PIOCEEAS ....veveeerierienrieeieiieeiesteetesteeeesieesseseeeseeneeseens (950) — — — —
Restructuring, separation and other expenses, net ..........c......... 11 787 1,322 8,441 3,397
Operating inCOME (10SS) «...eeveeuveeuierieeieniieiereeie e sieeie e 11,461 9,122)  (19,338) 15,757 20,648
Other INCOME ......eeiieeieiieiieeiee ettt es — (747) (2,029) (2,029) (2,402)
Interest (InCOME) EXPENSE, NEL.....eerviererreererreeierreereereesreeeenrens (873) (676) (390) @) 59
Income (loss) before iNCOME taxes........ceevveevreerveerieenieeneesieenns 12,334 (7,699)  (16,919) 17,793 22,991
Income tax provision (benefit) ™ ..........cooooiviiiiieee 2,444 (547) (7,433) 2,283 13,552
Net iNCOME (10SS) ....vvevrererereeireeeeeteeeeeeteeeee et eeeas $ 9890 $ (7,152) $§ (9,486) $ 15,510 $ 9,439
Earnings (loss) per share:

BaSIC 1.ttt $ 085 $§ (0.62) $ (0.83) $ 1.36 $ 0.80

DHIULCA 1o S 08 5 (0062) S5 (083 S 136 8 079

() For an explanation of the effective tax rate for the last three fiscal years, see Note I of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Years ended September 30,

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Balance Sheet Data: (In thousands)

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments " ............... $ 124,681 $ 49,754 $ 95,188 $ 97,720 $ 43,569
Property, plant and equipment, N€t...........cccevveeeerieriereeniereennens 120,812 128,764 139,420 144,977 154,594
TOLAl ASSELS ..eevvevieniieeiesiieeieeieete et ete et e e eeesteereesbeesaesseensesneensens 467,411 429,951 414,986 462,516 468,824
Long-term debt, including current maturities .............cccceeeeeeene 1,200 1,600 2,000 2,400 2,800
Total stockholders' eqUItY.........cocvevverierieriienieeiereeiesieeie e 299,153 301,644 321,296 335,317 333,262
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity .........ccccceeeveriiecriniennenns 467411 429,951 414,986 462,516 468,824
Dividends paid on common Stock ...........cccceviriieneenereeneniennen. 11,998 11,916 11,875 11,845 12,358

() Excludes current and non-current restricted cash totaling $25.1 million and $24.9 million as of September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

Years ended September 30,

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Other Financial Data: (In thousands)
BaCKIOZ ..ot $ 419,012 $260,900 $ 250,123 $291,354 § 441,437
INEW OFAETS ...ttt ettt ettt v e v 676,051 458,884 355,064 417,510 606,754
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations for the twelve months ended September 30,
2019 compared to the twelve months ended September 30, 2018 should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated
financial statements and related notes. We have elected to omit discussion on the earliest of the three years covered by the
consolidated financial statements presented. Refer to Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations and Liquidity and Capital Resources located in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2018, filed on December 12, 2018, for reference to discussion of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, the earliest of the three
fiscal years presented. Any forward-looking statements made by or on our behalf are made pursuant to the safe-harbor provisions
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Readers are cautioned that such forward-looking statements involve risks
and uncertainties, and the actual results may differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements. For a
description of the risks and uncertainties, please see “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements; Risk
Factors” and “Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors,” included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Overview

We develop, design, manufacture and service custom-engineered equipment and systems for the distribution, control and monitoring
of electrical energy. Headquartered in Houston, Texas, we serve the oil and gas markets, including onshore and offshore oil and
gas production, pipeline, refining and liquid natural gas terminals, as well as petrochemical, electric utility and light traction power.
Revenues and costs are primarily related to custom engineered-to-order equipment and systems and are accounted for under
percentage-of-completion accounting, which precludes us from providing detailed price and volume information. Our backlog
includes various projects that typically take a number of months to produce.

The markets in which we participate are capital-intensive and cyclical in nature. Cyclicality is predominantly driven by customer
demand, global economic conditions and anticipated environmental, safety or regulatory changes that affect the manner in which
our customers proceed with capital investments. Our customers analyze various factors including the demand and price for oil,
gas and electrical energy, the overall economic and financial environment, governmental budgets, regulatory actions and
environmental concerns. These factors influence the release of new capital projects by our customers, which are traditionally
awarded in competitive bid situations. Scheduling of projects is matched to the customer requirements, and projects typically take
a number of months to produce. Schedules may change during the course of any particular project, and our operating results can,
therefore, be impacted by factors outside of our control.

Due to the significant decline in oil and gas prices from peak 2014 levels, many of our customers reduced their capital budgets
and cut costs, and in certain instances delayed or canceled projects that we were pursuing. This decline in projects negatively
impacted our results in Fiscal 2018. However, customers have begun to invest in projects in our key oil and gas and petrochemical
markets, and this shift has had a favorable impact on our orders and backlog over recent quarters, resulting in increased revenues
in Fiscal 2019.

Results of Operations
Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2019 Compared to Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2018

Revenue and Gross Profit

Revenues increased by 15%, or $68.5 million, to $517.2 million in Fiscal 2019, primarily due to improved market conditions,
primarily in our oil and gas markets over the past few quarters. Domestic revenues increased by 22%, or $72.8 million, to $405.0
million in Fiscal 2019. International revenues decreased by 4% to $112.1 million in Fiscal 2019, primarily due to a slight decrease
in export projects from our domestic facilities. Our international revenues include both revenues generated from our international
facilities as well as revenues from export projects generated at our domestic facilities.

Commercial and industrial revenue increased by 21%, or $69.0 million, to $394.2 million in Fiscal 2019, driven by the strength
across the core oil and gas and petrochemical end markets. Public and private utilities revenue decreased by 5%, or $4.0 million,
to $85.0 million in Fiscal 2019, as we completed various large domestic utility projects in the backlog in Fiscal 2018. Municipal
and transit revenue increased by 10%, or $3.5 million, to $38.0 million in Fiscal 2019, primarily from project timing and product
mix of projects for some of our key municipal customers.

Gross profit increased by 33%, or $21.6 million, to $87.0 million in Fiscal 2019. Gross profit as a percentage of revenues increased
to 17% in Fiscal 2019, compared to 15% in Fiscal 2018, due to improved market conditions and efficiencies from increased volume
in our domestic and Canadian manufacturing facilities.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 5%, or $3.2 million, to $70.0 million in Fiscal 2019, primarily due to
increased personnel costs associated with increased project volume. Selling, general and administrative expenses, as a percentage
of revenues, decreased to 14% in Fiscal 2019 compared to 15% in Fiscal 2018, primarily due to the increase in revenues and our
continued focus on our cost structure.

Insurance Proceeds

In Fiscal 2019, we settled a 2017 business interruption insurance claim relating to Hurricane Harvey and received proceeds of
$1.0 million, which is included within operating income.

Restructuring, Separation and Other Expenses, Net

In Fiscal 2019, we recorded additional lease expense of $0.7 million related to certain unused facility leases in Canada. We also
recorded income from a recovery of $0.7 million in Fiscal 2019 as a result of a favorable settlement of a claim related to the
divestiture of a subsidiary in Fiscal 2014. In Fiscal 2018, we incurred $0.8 million of restructuring expense related to anticipated
losses on the sublet of a Canadian facility that we exited in a prior period.

Other Income

We did not record other income in Fiscal 2019. In Fiscal 2018, we recorded the final $0.5 million amortization of the deferred
gain from the amended supply agreement (see Note F of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements), as well as a $0.2 million
gain from the settlement of a Company-owned life insurance policy.

Income Tax Provision/Benefit

We recorded income tax provision of $2.4 million in Fiscal 2019, compared to an income tax benefit of $0.5 million in Fiscal
2018. The effective tax rate for Fiscal 2019 was 20% compared to an effective tax rate of 7% for Fiscal 2018. For Fiscal 2019,
the effective tax rate approximated the U.S. federal statutory rate due to the benefit of the utilization of net operating loss
carryforwards in Canada that were fully reserved with a valuation allowance and the benefit from Research and Development Tax
Credit (R&D Tax Credit). These tax benefits were largely offset by state income tax expense and other non-deductible costs. Due
to the loss position in Fiscal 2018, the effective tax rate was negatively impacted by foreign tax losses for which no tax benefit
was recognized and tax expense of $0.5 million due to the re-measurement of U.S. deferred tax assets as a result of tax reform.

Net Income/Loss

In Fiscal 2019, net income of $9.9 million, or $0.85 per diluted share, improved from a net loss of $7.2 million, or $0.62 per diluted
share in Fiscal 2018, primarily due to improved market conditions and efficiencies from increased volume in our domestic and
Canadian manufacturing facilities.

Backlog

The order backlog at September 30, 2019 was $419.0 million, a 61% increase from the $260.9 million at September 30, 2018,
primarily due to increased demand in our core oil and gas and petrochemical markets. New orders increased by 47% in Fiscal
2019 to $676.1 million, compared to $458.9 million in Fiscal 2018, primarily due to improved market conditions.

Outlook

The markets in which we participate are capital-intensive and cyclical in nature. Cyclicality is predominantly driven by customer
demand, global economic conditions and anticipated environmental, safety or regulatory changes which affect the manner in which
our customers proceed with capital investments. Our customers analyze various factors including the demand and price for oil,
gas and electrical energy, the overall economic and financial environment, governmental budgets, regulatory actions and
environmental concerns. These factors influence the release of new capital projects by our customers, which are traditionally
awarded in competitive bid situations. Scheduling of projects is matched to customer requirements, and projects typically take a
number of months to produce. Schedules may change during the course of any particular project, and our operating results can,
therefore, be impacted by factors outside of our control.

A significant portion of our revenues has historically been from the oil, gas and petrochemical markets. Oil and gas commodity
price levels have been unstable over the last several years, and our customers delayed some of their major capital investment

19



projects. Commodity prices have stabilized, and customers continue to invest in projects in our key oil and gas and petrochemical
markets, and this shift in market sentiment has had a favorable impact on our orders and backlog over recent quarters.

Our operating results have been impacted by factors such as the timing of new order awards, customer approval of final engineering
and design specifications and delays in customer construction schedules, all of which contribute to short-term earnings variability
and the timing of project execution. Our operating results also have been, and could continue to be, impacted by the timing and
resolution of change orders, project close-out and resolution of potential contract claims and liquidated damages, all of which
could improve or deteriorate gross margins during the period in which these items are resolved with our customers. These factors
may result in periods of underutilization of our resources and facilities and negatively impact our ability to cover our fixed costs.
The increased orders in Fiscal 2018 and 2019 have led to improvement in revenues and operating results that we anticipate will
continue into Fiscal 2020. We continue to focus on maintaining our cash position, improving efficiencies in production and investing
in future business opportunities. We continue to monitor the factors that drive our markets and will continue to strive to maintain
our leadership and competitive advantage in the markets we serve while aligning our cost structures with market conditions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of September 30, 2019, current assets exceeded current liabilities by 2.1 times, and our debt to total capitalization was 0.40%.

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments increased to $124.7 million at September 30, 2019, compared to $49.8 million
at September 30, 2018. We also had restricted cash held in a pledged collateral account related to our prior credit agreement of
$25.1 million at September 30, 2018. Our increase in project volume typically requires cash to fund operations. We believe that
our strong working capital position, available borrowings under our credit facility and available cash and short-term investments
should be sufficient to finance future operating activities, capital improvements, research and development initiatives and debt
repayments for the foreseeable future.

On September 27, 2019, we entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with Bank of America, N.A. (the "U.S.
Revolver") which replaced our prior credit agreement. The U.S. Revolver is a $75.0 million revolving credit facility, which is
available for both borrowings and letters of credit. As of September 30, 2019, there were no amounts borrowed under this facility,
and letters of credit outstanding were $13.4 million. As of September 30, 2019, $61.6 million was available for the issuance of
letters of credit and borrowing under the U.S. Revolver. Total long-term debt, including current maturities, totaled $1.2 million at
September 30, 2019 related to outstanding industrial development revenue bonds. For further information regarding our debt, see
Notes G and H of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Approximately $21.7 million of our cash and short-term investments at September 30, 2019 was held outside of the U.S. for
international operations. It is our intention to indefinitely reinvest all current and future foreign earnings internationally in order
to ensure sufficient working capital to support our international operations. In the event that we elect to repatriate some or all of
the foreign earnings that were previously deemed to be indefinitely reinvested outside the U.S., under current tax laws we may
incur additional tax expense upon such repatriation.

Operating Activities

Operating activities provided net cash of $68.8 million in Fiscal 2019 and used net cash of $28.5 million in Fiscal 2018. Cash
flow from operations is primarily influenced by project volume, the timing of milestone payments from our customers and the
payment terms with our suppliers. The increase in operating cash flows during Fiscal 2019 was primarily due to the completion
and cash collection of contractual billing milestones, the collection of accounts receivable and the receipt of a $6.6 million income
tax refund.

Investing Activities

Investing activities provided $3.0 million during Fiscal 2019 compared to $10.4 million in Fiscal 2018. The decrease in cash
provided by investing activities in Fiscal 2019 was primarily due to a decrease in the net maturities of short-term investments to
$7.2 million in Fiscal 2019, compared to $13.0 million in Fiscal 2018.

Net purchases of property, plant and equipment during Fiscal 2019 totaled $4.3 million compared to $4.4 million in Fiscal 2018.
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Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was $13.9 million in Fiscal 2019 and $13.0 million in Fiscal 2018, which primarily consisted
of approximately $12 million of dividends paid in each year.

Contractual and Other Obligations

At September 30, 2019, our long-term contractual obligations were limited to debt and leases. The table below details our
commitments by type of obligation, including interest if applicable, and the period that the payment will become due (in thousands).

Payments Due by Period:

Long-Term Debt Net Operating
Obligations Lease Obligations Total
LESS than 1 YEaT «..ovvveeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeesee e $ 414§ 2,164 $ 2,578
100 3 YEAIS cervrvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo eeeee e eeoeeeeeesse e 807 3,283 4,090
30 5 YEAIS .veuveuieuiiniiniitictc ettt — 650 650
More than 5 YEars «...coeevveuevieriiiiicieieicecece — — —
Total long-term contractual Obligations...........ccceveeecrueeuenienene $ 1,221 $ 6,097 $ 7,318

As of September 30, 2019, the total unrecognized tax benefit related to uncertain tax positions was $2.7 million. We estimate that
none of this will be paid within the next 12 months. However, we believe that it is reasonably possible that within the next 12
months, the total unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by approximately $0.9 million due to the expiration of certain statutes
of limitations and voluntary filings. We are unable to make reasonably reliable estimates regarding the timing of future cash
outflows, if any, associated with the remaining unrecognized tax benefits.

Other Commercial Commitments

We are contingently liable for letters of credit and bank guarantees totaling $19.0 million as of September 30, 2019, with the
following potential cash outflows in the event that we are unable to perform under our contracts (in thousands):

Letters of
Credit/Bank
Payments Due by Period: Guarantees
LSS thaN 1 WAL ......ecuiiuiiuiitiitietietiete ettt ettt ettt ettt eteeteeteeteeaeese s e s e sse s essessensessessessensensersenseseesesseesenns $ 9,728
1 E0 3 WEATS ..eiieveetie et eette ettt e et e e e ettt e bt e et e e taeetbe e te e e b e ebeeeabeebaeeabe e taeeabe e tbeanbe e baeenbeeaaeesbeetaeanbeetaeanreeraean 8,530
IMOTE thaN 3 YEATS ......eiiieiiitieiiectieieete ettt et et ete et e steeteesseessesseessaseessasseesseessessaessessesnsensesssessessseseessansenssaseans 784
Total long-term commercial OBIIZALIONS ...........cciiiiiiiiiiiiieiicieei ettt ettt ettt ereereeereerseereeaseereens $ 19,042

We also had performance and maintenance bonds totaling $170.5 million that were outstanding at September 30, 2019. Performance
and maintenance bonds are primarily used to guarantee our contract performance to our customers.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We had no off-balance sheet arrangements during the periods presented.

Effects of Inflation

We are subject to inflation, which can cause increases in our costs of raw materials, primarily copper, aluminum and steel. Fixed-
price contracts can limit our ability to pass these increases to our customers, thus negatively impacting our earnings. Inflation in
commodity prices could potentially impact our operations in future years.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S.
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities known to exist at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis, based on historical experience
and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. There can be no assurance that actual
results will not differ from those estimates.

We believe the following accounting policies and estimates to be critical in the preparation and reporting of our consolidated
financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

On October 1, 2018, we adopted the new revenue recognition standard using the modified retrospective transition method. We
applied the guidance in the standard to customer contracts that were not substantially complete at that time, and we determined
that no adjustment to retained earnings was necessary. Financial results for reporting periods after October 1, 2018 are reported
under the new standard; however, financial results for prior periods were not adjusted and continue to be presented in accordance
with the previous standard.

The majority of our revenues are generated from the manufacturing of custom-engineered products and systems under long-term
fixed-price contracts under which we agree to manufacture various products such as traditional and arc-resistant distribution
switchgear and control gear, medium-voltage circuit breakers, monitoring and control communications systems, motor control
centers and bus duct systems. These products may be sold separately as an engineered solution, but are typically integrated into
custom-built enclosures which we also build. These enclosures are referred to as power control room substations (PCRs®), custom-
engineered modules or electrical houses (E-Houses). Some contracts may also include the installation and the commissioning of
these enclosures.

Revenue from these contracts is generally recognized over time utilizing the cost-to-cost method to measure the extent of progress
toward the completion of the performance obligation and the recognition of revenue over time. We believe that this method is the
most accurate representation of our performance, because it directly measures the value of the services transferred to the customer
over time as we incur costs on our contracts. Contract costs include all direct materials, labor, and indirect costs related to contract
performance, which may include indirect labor, supplies, tools, repairs and depreciation costs.

We also have contracts to provide value-added services such as field service inspection, installation, commissioning, modification
and repair, as well as retrofit and retrofill components for existing systems. As a practical expedient, if the service contract terms
give us the right to invoice the customer for an amount that corresponds directly with the value of our performance completed to
date (i.e., a service contract in which we bill a fixed amount for each hour of service provided), then we recognize revenue over
time in each reporting period corresponding to the amount with which we have the right to invoice. Our performance obligations
are satisfied as the work progresses. Revenues from our custom-engineered products and value-added services transferred to
customers over time accounted for approximately 94% of revenues for Fiscal 2019.

We also have sales orders for spare parts and replacement circuit breakers for switchgear that are obsolete or that are no longer
produced by the original manufacturer. Revenues from these sales orders are recognized at the time we fulfill our performance
obligation to the customer, which is typically upon shipment and represented approximately 6% of revenues for Fiscal 2019.

Additionally, some contracts may contain a cancellation clause that could limit the amount of revenue we are able to recognize
over time. In these instances, revenue and costs associated with these contracts are deferred and recognized at the time the
performance obligation is fulfilled.

Performance Obligations

A performance obligation is a promise in a contract or with a customer to transfer a distinct good or service. A contract’s transaction
price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation and recognized as revenue as the performance obligations are satisfied.
To determine the proper revenue recognition for contracts, we evaluate whether a contract should be accounted for as more than
one performance obligation or, less commonly, whether two or more contracts should be combined and accounted for as one
performance obligation. This evaluation of performance obligations requires significant judgment. The majority of our contracts
have a single performance obligation where multiple engineered products and services are combined into a single, custom-
engineered solution. Our contracts generally include a standard assurance warranty that typically ends 18 months after shipment.
Occasionally, we provide service-type warranties that will extend the warranty period. These extended warranties qualify as
separate performance obligations, and revenue is deferred and recognized over the warranty period. If we determine during the
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evaluation of the contract that there are multiple performance obligations, we allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation using our best estimate of the standalone selling price of each distinct good or service in the contract.

Remaining unsatisfied performance obligations, which we refer to as backlog, represent the estimated transaction price for goods
and services for which we have a material right, but work has not been performed. As of September 30, 2019, we had backlog of
$419.0 million, of which approximately $345 million is expected to be recognized as revenue within the next twelve months.
Backlog may not be indicative of future operating results as orders may be cancelled or modified by our customers. Our backlog
does not include service and maintenance-type contracts for which we have the right to invoice as services are performed.

Contract Estimates

Actual revenues and project costs may vary from previous estimates due to changes in a variety of factors. The cost estimation
process is based upon the professional knowledge and experience of our engineers, project managers and financial professionals.
Factors that are considered in estimating the work to be completed and ultimate contract recovery include the availability and
productivity of labor, the nature and complexity of the work to be performed, the availability of materials, and the effect of any
delays on our project performance. We periodically review our job performance, job conditions, estimated profitability and final
contract settlements, including our estimate of total costs and make revisions to costs and income in the period in which the
revisions are probable and reasonably estimable. Whenever revisions of estimated contract costs and contract values indicate that
the contract costs will exceed estimated revenues, thus creating a loss, a provision for the total estimated loss is recorded in that
period.

For Fiscal 2019 and Fiscal 2018, our operating results were positively impacted by $5.1 million and $3.9 million, respectively, as
a result of changes in contract estimates related to projects in progress at the beginning of the respective period. These changes
in estimates resulted primarily from favorable project execution and negotiations of variable consideration as well as other changes
in facts and circumstances during these periods.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain and continually assess the adequacy of an allowance for doubtful accounts representing our estimate for losses
resulting from the inability of our customers to pay amounts due to us. This estimated allowance is based on historical experience
of uncollected accounts, the level of past due accounts, the overall level of outstanding accounts receivable, information about
specific customers with respect to their inability to make payments and expectations of future conditions that could impact the
collectability of accounts receivable. However, future changes in our customers’ operating performance and cash flows, or in
general economic conditions, could have an impact on their ability to fully pay these amounts, which, among other things, could
have a material adverse impact on our operating results.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
not be realizable. If an evaluation is required, the estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with the asset are compared
to the asset’s carrying amount to determine if recording an impairment of such asset is necessary. This requires us to make long-
term forecasts of the future revenues and costs related to the assets subject to review. Forecasts require assumptions about demand
for our products and future market conditions. Estimating future cash flows requires significant judgment, and our projections
may vary from cash flows eventually realized. Future events and unanticipated changes to assumptions could require a provision
for impairment in a future period. The effect of any impairment would be reflected in income (loss) from operations in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. In addition, we estimate the useful lives of our long-lived assets and other intangibles and
periodically review these estimates to determine whether these lives are appropriate.

Accruals for Contingent Liabilities

From time to time, contingencies such as insurance-related claims, liquidated damages and legal claims arise in the normal course
of business. Pursuant to applicable accounting standards, we must evaluate such contingencies to subjectively determine the
likelihood that an asset has been impaired, or a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements, as well as evaluate
whether the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. If the likelihood is determined to be probable, and it can be reasonably
estimated, the estimated loss is recorded. The amounts we record for contingent liabilities require judgments regarding the amount
of expenses that will ultimately be incurred. We use past experience and history, as well as the specific circumstances surrounding
each contingent liability, including estimated legal costs, in evaluating the amount of liability that should be recorded. Actual
results could differ from our estimates.
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Warranty Costs

We provide for estimated warranty costs with the recognition of revenue based upon historical rates applicable to individual product
lines. In addition, specific provisions are made when the costs of such warranties are expected to exceed accruals. Our standard
terms and conditions of sale include a warranty for parts and service for the earlier of 18 months from the date of shipment or 12
months from the date of energization, whichever occurs first. Occasionally projects require warranty terms that are longer than
our standard terms due to the nature of the project. Extended warranty terms may be negotiated and included in our contracts. We
use past experience and historical claims to determine the estimated liability. Actual results could differ from our estimate.

Accounting for Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method, based on the income tax laws and rates in the countries in which
operations are conducted, and income is earned. This approach requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for
the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and
liabilities. Developing our provision for income taxes requires significant judgment and expertise in federal, international and
state income tax laws, regulations and strategies, including the determination of deferred tax assets and liabilities and, if necessary,
any valuation allowances that may be required for deferred tax assets. In assessing the extent to which net deferred tax assets may
be realized, we consider whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the net deferred tax assets may not be
realized. The ultimate realization of net deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income during the
periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Estimates may change as new events occur, estimates of future
taxable income during the carryforward period are reduced or increased, additional information becomes available, or operating
environments change, which may result in a full or partial reversal of the valuation allowance. We will continue to assess the
adequacy of the valuation allowance on a quarterly basis. Our judgments and tax strategies are subject to audit by various taxing
authorities.

The objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and
deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in an entity’s financial
statements or tax returns. We recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax
position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits
recognized in the financial statements from such a position should be measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than
50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Accounting literature also provides guidance on derecognition of
income tax assets and liabilities, classification of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities, accounting for interest and
penalties associated with tax positions, and income tax disclosures. Judgment is required in assessing the future tax consequences
of events that have been recognized in our financial statements or tax returns. Variations in the actual outcome of these future tax
consequences could materially impact our financial position and results of operations.

See Note I of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for disclosures related to the valuation allowance recorded in relation
to foreign deferred taxes.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency for our foreign operating subsidiaries is the local currency in which the entity is located. The financial
statements of all subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the U.S. Dollar have been translated into U.S. Dollars. All
assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into U.S. Dollars using year-end exchange rates, and all revenues and
expenses are translated at average rates during the respective period. The U.S. Dollar results that arise from such translation, as
well as exchange gains and losses on intercompany balances of a long-term investment nature, are included in the cumulative
currency translation adjustments in accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to certain market risks arising from transactions we have entered into in the normal course of business. These
risks primarily relate to fluctuations in market conditions, commodity prices, foreign currency transactions and interest rates.

Market Risk

We are exposed to general market risk and its potential impact on accounts receivable or costs and estimated earnings in excess
of billings on uncompleted contracts. The amounts recorded may be at risk if our customers’ ability to pay these obligations is
negatively impacted by economic conditions. Our customers are typically in the oil and gas markets, including onshore and offshore
oil and gas production, pipeline, refining and liquid natural gas terminals, as well as petrochemical, electric utility and light traction
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power. We maintain ongoing discussions with customers regarding contract status with respect to payment status, change orders
and billing terms in an effort to monitor collections of amounts billed.

Commodity Price Risk

We are subject to market risk from fluctuating market prices of certain raw materials used in our products. While such materials
are typically available from numerous suppliers, commodity raw materials are subject to price fluctuations. We attempt to pass
along such commodity price increases to our customers on a contract-by-contract basis to avoid a negative effect on profit margin.
While we may do so in the future, we have not currently entered into any derivative contracts to hedge our exposure to commodity
risk. We continue to experience price volatility with some of our key raw materials and components. Fixed-price contracts may
limit our ability to pass cost increases to our customers, thus negatively impacting our earnings. Fluctuations in commodity prices
may have a material impact on our future earnings and cash flows.

Foreign Currency Transaction Risk

We have operations that expose us to currency risk in the British Pound Sterling, the Canadian Dollar and to a lesser extent the
Euro. Amounts invested in our foreign operations are translated into U.S. Dollars at the exchange rates in effect at the balance
sheet date. The resulting translation adjustments are recorded as accumulated other comprehensive loss, a component of
stockholders’ equity in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We believe the exposure to the effects that fluctuating foreign currencies
have on our consolidated results of operations is limited because the foreign operations primarily invoice customers and collect
obligations in their respective currencies or U.S. Dollars. Additionally, expenses associated with these transactions are generally
contracted and paid for in the same local currencies. For Fiscal 2019, our realized foreign exchange gain was $0.4 million and is
included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Our accumulated other comprehensive loss, which is included as a component of stockholders’ equity, was $24.5 million as of
September 30, 2019, an increase of $2.8 million compared to September 30, 2018. This increase in comprehensive loss was
primarily aresult of fluctuations in the currency exchange rates for the Canadian Dollar and British Pound Sterling as we remeasured
the foreign operations of those divisions.

We do not typically hedge our exposure to potential foreign currency translation adjustments.

Interest Rate Risk

If we borrow under our U.S. Revolver, we will be subject to market risk resulting from changes in interest rates related to our
floating rate bank credit facility. If we were to make such borrowings, a hypothetical 100 basis point increase in variable interest
rates may result in a material impact to our financial statements. While we do not currently have any derivative contracts to hedge
our exposure to interest rate risk, in the past we have entered and may in the future enter into such contracts. During each of the
periods presented, we have not experienced a significant effect on our business due to changes in interest rates.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Powell Industries, Inc.
Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Powell Industries, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”)
as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of operations, of comprehensive income (loss), of
stockholders’ equity and of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2019, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements™). We also have audited the Company's internal control
over financial reporting as of September 30, 2019, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended September 30, 2019 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of September 30, 2019, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

Basis for Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our
audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB)
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether
due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks.
Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal control over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits
also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas
December 5, 2019

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2004.
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POWELL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

September 30,
2019 2018
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ........ceecveriiecieriieiereeiere et et ettt e ete et e eteeseeseesseeseessesnnesseenees $ 118,639 $ 36,584
ShOTt-tEIM INVESTIMENTS .....eovviiiieiiiiiieie ettt e et e e et e e et e e e eaeeeeenaeeeenseeeennneesneeeas 6,042 13,170
RESTIICIEA CASIN ...t eeae e e e eaaae e e e e esaaaeeeseennssaeeeeennees — 19,154
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $301 and $157 ................. 112,093 92,548
(07) 110 Lo A T P 55,374 82,545
LTS 11607 (o1 RO 29,202 21,352
INCOME tAXES TECEIVADIE .......ouvvieieiiiieiiiee ettt e e e e e e e e eeneeeseneeeeennneeennees 233 6,904
Prepaid EXPENSES . ...cuvevveirieiietieiieteeie ettt ettt ettt b e tt et e st ebe st e saeeraesaeeneas 4,335 3,775
OThET CUITENE @SSELS ....eiuvveieiieieutiieieeeiiteeteeeeesteeeeeeesiareeeeeesasaseseeeessasssessesssseeesesssssseeeessnses 2,650 630
TOLAl CUITENE ASSELS ...veeeeeieeeeeeeee ettt e e eeee et e e e et ee e e e e e et e e e e e sesaaaeeeeeesnaeeeeseesnreseeessnnnes 328,568 276,662
Property, plant and equipmMent, NEt...........ceruieierierierieee et eee et eee e enee e eeesaeenees 120,812 128,764
] o1 15T o7 1 o BT — 5,987
Goodwill and intangible aSSES, MET ......c..ecueruierierieierieiereesieseesteeeeteeeesseeseesseeseessesnsesseenees 1,337 1,514
DeEferred INCOME TAXES ....eoovveeiieiie ettt ettt e e et e e e e et e e enteeeeaeeesesaeesenseesenneessneeeas 5,117 5,937
(07515 B L1 - ORTRPTRRt 11,577 11,087
TOLAL ASSELS. ettt et e e et e et et e et e e e ee e e e e e eeneeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesaeeenesaeenen $ 467411 $ 429,951
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt ...........cooeeviiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e $ 400 $ 400
ACCOUNLS PAYADIC ...ttt ae s 51,180 40,714
CONLACT TIADIIIEIES ..c.veevreeeeeeetieeieeette et e ete et e steeteeetreeteessaeesseessseanseessseesseesseessesnseenseenns 71,464 43,174
Accrued compensation and DENefits ...........cceviecierieciiriee e 20,182 22,274
Accrued ProduCt WAITANLY.........cc.eecverieeierieeienrieteseetesseessesseessesseessesssessesssesseessessesssenseenes 2,946 2,604
INCOME tAXES PAYADIC ....ccuieiiiciieiieieiieeete ettt b et sbe e sneeneas 913 897
Other CUITENT THADIIITIES ....veeiiiiiiiiiiii it iee ettt eeette e e eeaaaeeeeeeeaaeeeeeeessseeeeeeannnes 10,811 7,786
Total Current LIabIIITIES ....ccuvvvviiiiiiiieiee ettt e e e e e e enaeeeeeeenees 157,896 117,849
Long-term debt, net of current Maturities..........cocveveruieriereereeiere ettt eee e e eee e enees 800 1,200
Deferred compensation (INOTE J) ......ecveruieierieiierieeierieee ettt seee e enesseennes 6,447 5,902
Other 10ng-term LHaDIIIEIES. ... .ecvieieeiieieriieiese ettt te e te e e esbe e e eseeseesseeseesseeneesseennes 3,115 3,356
TOtAl LIADIIITIES. ...uvveeieeieeceee ettt e ettt esenaeeeenaeeesneeean 168,258 128,307
Commitments and Contingencies (Note H)
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.01; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued....................... — —
Common stock, par value $.01; 30,000,000 shares authorized; 12,372,766 and
12,280,556 shares iSSUEd, TESPECHVELY ......voviviveviuierecececececececececececeeeeecececececeeaeeseseseseee e eeeeenes 124 123
Additional paid-in CaAPItAl ........cocueriiiieieieieee et ee s 59,153 56,769
Retained Carnings........cuevvieiiriieiieieiieiet ettt sttt ettt eneese st e nseennesneennes 289,422 291,530
Treasury stock, 806,018 Shares at COSt........cverrirriirirrieiierieeieeeieteeetesieeeeesseeeesaeenaesaeennes (24,999) (24,999)
Accumulated other cOmpPrehensive 10SS........ccuvvviiieieiieiiecieieeeeeee e (24,547) (21,779)
Total Stockholders' EQUILY ........ccouieieriiiieniiienieetesieeestcee sttt 299,153 301,644
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' EQUILY ........ccccceiririniirenieieeeeeeeeeeee $ 467,411 §$ 429,951

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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POWELL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended September 30,

2019 2018 2017
REVETIUES ...ttt et e e et e eaeseeeae s e eeaeeeeeneeeaeeneenaasneens $ 517,180 $ 448,716 $ 395,911
Cost 0f Z00AS SOIA....c.vieiieiieieiieeeeeeee et 430,204 383,361 345,142
GTOSS PLOTIE c.viveiitieeieitietiecte ettt et ete et e eteesteetaesaeesaesseesaesseessesseensasseens 86,976 65,355 50,769
Selling, general and administrative EXpenses ...........cc.eeveeeerreeeerreeeennenes 69,950 66,768 61,524
Research and development €Xpenses ........c..cveeeeeeereeeeereeeeireeieereeneenenns 6,327 6,717 6,906
Amortization of intangible assets...........ccevveeveerieiienierieeieieee e 177 205 355
INSUTANCE PIOCEEAS .....vevverieeeirieeieere ettt ettt ete ettt eae v e eeveeaeeveens (950) — —
Restructuring, separation and other expenses, Net.............cceceevverreevennns 11 787 1,322
Operating iNCOME (10SS) .....ccveeriieiiieeieeiiecte et eete et eeee e seeeebeeseeeeareenes 11,461 9,122) (19,338)
Other income (NOte F) ....ooviiviiiiciiciicceeeeceee e — (747) (2,029)
INEETESt EXPEINSE ...eevvieuiieriiieiieeieeieeete et et ete ettt esttesabeesanesabeesaaesnseenns 230 207 168
INEEIESt INCOME .....eviiiieeietieiiieteeii ettt ettt et et eea et a e ve s e ere e (1,103) (883) (558)
Income (10ss) before iINCOME taAXES.......cceevverevueeiiieirieeieeereeeeeeereeseeeereeans 12,334 (7,699) (16,919)
Income tax provision (benefit)........ccccceevveviercieniriieniiiere e 2,444 (547) (7,433)
NEt INCOME (10SS) «.vevveererireeeeeeeeereeeeeeeeteeeteeeeseeseseeseneesensesessereseresereneens $ 9,890 $ (7,152) $ (9,486)
Earnings (loss) per share:
BaSIC ..ottt ens $ 085 $ 0.62) $ (0.83)
DIIULEA ...ttt ne et eneeneeaeeneenens $ 085 § 0.62) $ (0.83)
Weighted average shares:
BaaSIC . 11,571 11,507 11,453
DHIULEA ..ottt ne s eaeeneeae e 11,634 11,507 11,453
Dividends per Share............cccocieieviiiiciiieieeeeeeee e $ 1.04 $ 1.04 $ 1.04

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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POWELL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(In thousands)
Year Ended September 30,
2019 2018 2017
NEL INCOME (10SS)....veeerieeerieeteeteeeeteee et etee e et et et ese et eseeseseeteseeseseeseseteeseseeseseesesseseneesens $ 9890 $ (7,152) $  (9,486)
Foreign currency translation adjustments............cceveverieeierieerieneeienieeieneereseeeneseeennes (2,743) (3,100) 4,822
Postretirement benefit adjustment, net 0f taX .........ccceverieiiiieiiinieeee e, (25) 75 192
Comprehensive iNCOME (10SS) ....euvivivierieeriietiietieeetieteteeteee et eeseteeeesessereseseseressesesseseenas $ 7,122 $§ (10,177) $ (4,472)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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POWELL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands)
Common Stock Additional Treasury Stock Accgltl}llzl:ted
Paid-in Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Shares Amount Income/(Loss) Total
Balance, September 30, 2016...........c.cccoeoiiririiiniiniicceene 12,199 $ 122 § 52,003 $331,959 (806) $(24,999) $ (23,768) § 335,317
NELLOSS....oieeieiircieiece ettt — — — (9,486) — — — (9,486)
Foreign currency translation adjustments........................ — — — — — — 4,822 4,822
Stock-based compensation...............cccceeeverererereennnnenene. 18 — 2,724 — — — — 2,724
Shares withheld in lieu of employee tax withholding..... — — (398) — — — — (398)
Issuance of restricted Stock ............ocooiiiiiinieniiiine 17 — — — — — — —
Dividends paid...........c.ccoooeerviniiiiiniieieeeeeenes — — — (11,875) — — — (11,875)
Postretirement benefit adjustment, net of tax of $103.... — — — — — — 192 192
Balance, September 30, 2017.........c.ccccooiiiriniiiniiiiceeene 12,234 § 122 § 54,329 $310,598 (806) $(24,999) $ (18,754) § 321,296
INEE 0SSttt — — — (7,152) — — — (7,152)
Foreign currency translation adjustments...................... — — — — = = (3,100) (3,100)
Stock-based compensation...............cccceeeverererererneenennn. 32 — 3,152 — — — — 3,152
Shares withheld in lieu of employee tax withholding..... — — (712) — — — — (712)
Issuance of restricted Stock ..ot 15 1 — — — — — 1
Dividends paid ............o.cooevveeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e — — —  (11916) = = = (11,916)
Postretirement benefit adjustment, net of tax of $20...... — — — — — — 75 75
Balance, September 30, 2018...........c.cccoeoiieniiiniiriicieene 12281 $§ 123 $ 56,769 $291,530 (806) $(24,999) $ (21,779) § 301,644
NELINCOME ...ttt — — — 9,890 — — — 9,890
Foreign currency translation adjustments...................... — — — — = = (2,743) (2,743)
Stock-based compensation................ccceeeeverereiereernenenenn. 78 1 3,838 — — — — 3,839
Shares withheld in lieu of employee tax withholding..... — — (1,454) — — — — (1,454)
Issuance of restricted Stock ............coooiiiiiiniininiiine 14 — — — — — — —
Dividends paid ............o.cooevveeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e — — —  (11,998) = = = (11,998)
Postretirement benefit adjustment, net of tax of $7........ — — — — — — (25) (25)
Balance, September 30, 2019...........cccccoeoiiiniiiniininiiieene 12373 § 124 $§ 59,153 $289,422 (806) $(24,999) $ (24,547) § 299,153

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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POWELL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Operating Activities:
INEt INCOME (LOSS) ...vivieeierieeieeeeteeteet ettt ettt et et e et e eteeteeteereereene e s e eseeseereeseeseeneeneensesenseereenes

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:

Depreciation and amOTItiZation.............c.ccvevveeveerierieriereereeeeeeteereereereereereereeseessesseeseeseeseeseas

Stock-based compensation

Bad debt eXPense (TECOVETY).....cecueeuieieieieiesteiteetecteeteeteeseestesessesseeresteereessessessesessessessens
Deferred INCOME tAXES ......coueveueriririeriirieteiiirietetertet ettt stetese st st etesesteseseseeseebeseseasesenensesenes
Gain on amended SUPPLY @GIEEMENL..........ceririeueuiieieeeiieeeteeet ettt
Gain on cash surrender value of life inSurance...............ccoceeveveevenieeceeeeicieieseeseeeennn
Cash received from amended supply agreement...............ccoeveeevveveeereireieeereeeeeeceereereere e
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE, TEL.....couviiiiiiiieicceee et ettt st e e et e e saeeeaaeseaaeeea
Contract assets and liabilities, NEt.........couvueuiririrreiriririeirieieieent ettt ere e eaenes
TIVEIEOTIES. ...ttt ettt s sttt e sttt e s e s eaese s esenan
INCOMIE TAXES ...ttt ettt ettt s b sbe bt eb e st e b et e naenbenneas
Prepaid expenses and other CUITENt @SSELS ............ceceeveeieierierreereere e e ereereereeeeeseereereerea
ACCOUNLS PAYADIC .......evvieiieteiiieieteieiet ettt ettt ettt s et et esene e esesesenssseseneneesesenesesenen
Accrued liabilities
OBNET, TICL ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b et st s ettt s et e b b e st saebest et ebeb et st et ese e et ebeseneenenen

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ..........ccoeevveerireereererieeererieeeenes
Investing Activities:

Purchases of short-term investments

Maturities of ShOTt-term INVESTMENTS ...........c.eeiririeueeietetesiriseeteieseeteteieseeaeseneseeseseneseeseneseeees
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, Net...........c..ecvrerirereireneeseeeeee e
Proceeds from life inSUrance POliCY ..........coeveieerieuirieieieieieiee ettt ere e enens

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities............cecevveerrereeerieerriieeieeennes

Financing Activities:

Payments on industrial development revenue bonds ..............ccocevveiviinieinieiiiienieeeceeeeen
Shares withheld in lieu of employee tax Withholding...........cccoeeeririeininieieireee e
DivIdends Paid........c.cceeuieieiiieiesiececieceeteee ettt ettt ettt st ae et ae s sb e b e beebeeaas

Net cash used in financing aCtIVITIES .........c.ecerveiererieririeieieieieteriereeetee et eseeeneeaens

Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash.............cccocevveirieiieeennnnns
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash..........................

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period...............cccoeveeevvevrevreneeeennns

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period

Year Ended September 30,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2019 2018 2017
9,800 $  (7,152) $  (9,486)
12,032 12,903 12,755
3,839 3,152 2,724
233 111 (160)

820 (2,170) 100
— (507) (2,029)
— (240) —
— — 2,333
(20,193) (37,176) 47,983
55,333 (14,117) (3,270)
(7,989) (3,023) 8,213
6,681 996 (6,758)
(2,626) (237) 453
9,550 8,152 (2,417)
1,419 8,859 (11,676)
(230) 1,906 (1,950)
68,759 (28,543) 36,815
(5,869) (22,261) (60,018)
13,088 35,248 33,189
(4,255) (4,415) (3,624)
— 1,861 —
2,964 10,433 (30,453)
(400) (400) (400)
(1,454) (712) (398)
(11,998) (11,916) (11,875)
(13,852) (13,028) (12,673)
57,871 (31,138) (6,311)
(957) (347) 1,801
61,725 93,210 97,720
118,639 $ 61,725 $ 93,210



POWELL INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Business and Organization

Powell Industries, Inc. (we, us, our, Powell or the Company) was incorporated in the state of Delaware in 2004 as a successor to
a Nevada company incorporated in 1968. The Nevada company was the successor to a company founded by William E. Powell
in 1947, which merged into the Company in 1977. Our major subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned, include: Powell Electrical
Systems, Inc.; Powell (UK) Limited; Powell Canada Inc. and Powell Industries International, B.V.

We develop, design, manufacture and service custom-engineered equipment and systems which (1) distribute, control and monitor
the flow of electrical energy and (2) provide protection to motors, transformers and other electrically powered equipment. Our
principal products include integrated power control room substations (PCRs®), custom-engineered modules, electrical houses (E-
Houses), traditional and arc-resistant distribution switchgear and control gear, medium-voltage circuit breakers, monitoring and
control communications systems, motor control centers and bus duct systems. These products are designed for application voltages
ranging from 480 volts to 38,000 volts and are used in oil and gas refining, onshore and offshore oil and gas production,
petrochemical, liquid natural gas terminals, pipeline, terminal, mining and metals, light rail traction power, electric utility, pulp
and paper and other heavy industrial markets. Our product scope includes designs tested to meet both U.S. and international
standards, under both the American National Standards Institute (ANSI) and International Electrotechnical Commission. We assist
customers by providing value-added services such as spare parts, field service inspection, installation, commissioning, modification
and repair, retrofit and retrofill components for existing systems and replacement circuit breakers for switchgear that is obsolete
or that is no longer produced by the original manufacturer. We seek to establish long-term relationships with the end users of our
systems as well as the design and construction engineering firms contracted by those end users. We believe that our culture of
safety and focus on customer satisfaction along with our financial strength allow us to continue to capitalize on opportunities in
the industries we serve.

References to Fiscal 2019, Fiscal 2018 and Fiscal 2017 used throughout these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements relate
to our fiscal years ended September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Powell and our wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
(U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying footnotes. The most significant estimates used in our financial statements affect revenue recognition
and estimated cost recognition on our customer contracts, the allowance for doubtful accounts, provision for excess and obsolete
inventory, warranty accruals and income taxes. The amounts recorded for warranties, legal, income taxes, impairment of long-
lived assets (when applicable) and other contingent liabilities require judgments regarding the amount of expenses that will
ultimately be incurred. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions, as well as the specific
circumstances surrounding these contingent liabilities, in evaluating the amount of liability that should be recorded. Additionally,
the recognition of deferred tax assets requires estimates related to future income and other assumptions regarding timing and future
profitability because the ultimate realization of net deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income
during periods in which temporary differences become deductible. Estimates routinely change as new events occur, additional
information becomes available or operating environments change. Actual results may differ from our prior estimates.

Cash and Investments
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, primarily funds held in money market savings instruments, are reported at their current carrying value,
which approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments, and are included in cash and cash equivalents in
our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Short-term Investments - Short-term investments include time deposits with original maturities of three months or more.
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Restricted Cash - Restricted cash included cash and cash equivalents that were unavailable for withdrawal or usage for general
obligations and represented a pledged cash collateral balance that was required under our prior credit agreement and was held in
an interest-bearing savings account. See Note G for further discussion on restricted cash.

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information (in thousands):

Year Ended September 30,

2019 2018 2017
Cash paid (received) during the period for:
Interest paid, net of INterest INCOME..........cc.ecvecveieieiiieieiee et $ ®73) § (676) (384)
Income taxes paid, net of refunds............cccoeieeiiiiiiiiiiceeee e, (5,219) 354 (764)
Non-cash capital eXpenditures...........cccocvereiiereiiereeiese ettt eenens 1,248 129 634

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments include cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments, restricted cash, receivables, deferred compensation,
payables and debt obligations. Except as described below, due to the short-term nature of account receivables and account payables,
the book value is representative of their fair value. The carrying value of debt approximates fair value as interest rates are indexed
to the Federal Funds Rate or the bank’s prime rate.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated net of allowances for doubtful accounts. We maintain and continually assess the adequacy of the
allowance for doubtful accounts representing our estimate for losses resulting from the inability of our customers to pay amounts
due to us. This estimated allowance is based on historical experience of uncollected accounts, the level of past due accounts, the
overall level of outstanding accounts receivable, information about specific customers with respect to their inability to make
payments and expectations of future conditions that could impact the collectability of accounts receivable. Future changes in our
customers’ operating performance and cash flows, or in general economic conditions, could have an impact on their ability to fully
pay these amounts, which could have a material impact on our operating results. In most cases, receivables are not collateralized.
However, we utilize letters of credit to secure payment on projects when possible. As of September 30, 2019 and 2018, accounts
receivable included retention amounts of $5.6 million and $4.2 million, respectively. Retention amounts are in accordance with

applicable provisions of contracts and become due upon completion of contractual requirements. Of the retained amount at
September 30, 2019, $4.9 million is expected to be collected in the next twelve months and is recorded in accounts receivable.
The remaining $0.7 million is recorded in other assets and is expected to be collected in Fiscal 2021.

Contract Balances

Contract assets, previously referred to as costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts are recorded
when revenues are recognized in excess of amounts billed for fixed-price contracts as determined by the billing milestone schedule.
Contract assets are transferred to accounts receivable when billing milestones have been met, or we have an unconditional right
to payment.

Contract liabilities, previously referred to as billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts, typically
represent advance payments from contractual billing milestones and billings in excess of revenue recognized. It is unusual to have
advanced milestone payments with a term greater than one year, which could represent a financing component on the contract.

Our contract assets and liabilities are reported in a net position on a contract-by-contract basis at the end of each reporting period
and are generally classified as current.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value using weighted-average methods and include the cost of materials,
labor and manufacturing overhead. We use estimates in determining the level of reserves required to state inventory at the lower
of cost or net realizable value. Our estimates are based on market activity levels, production requirements, the physical condition
of products and technological innovation. Changes in any of these factors may result in adjustments to the carrying value of
inventory.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of the assets. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense when incurred. Expenditures for major renewals
and improvements, which extend the useful lives of existing equipment, are capitalized and depreciated. Upon retirement or
disposition of property, plant and equipment, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and
any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We review property, plant and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may not be realizable. If an evaluation is required, the estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with the asset
are compared to the asset’s carrying amount to determine if recording an impairment of such asset is necessary. If an impairment
is indicated, we record an impairment loss equal to the difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the long-lived
asset. This requires us to make long-term forecasts of the future revenues and the costs related to the assets subject to review.
Forecasts require assumptions about demand for our products and future market conditions. Estimating future cash flows requires
significant judgment, and our projections may vary from cash flows eventually realized. Future events and unanticipated changes
to assumptions could require a provision for impairment in a future period. The effect of any impairment would be reflected in
income (loss) from operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. In addition, we estimate the useful lives of our
property, plant and equipment and periodically review these estimates to determine whether these lives are appropriate.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method, based on the income tax laws and rates in the countries in which
operations are conducted, and income is earned. This approach requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for
the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and
liabilities. Developing our provision for income taxes requires significant judgment and expertise in federal, international and
state income tax laws, regulations and strategies, including the determination of deferred tax assets and liabilities and, if necessary,
any valuation allowances that may be required for deferred tax assets. In assessing the extent to which net deferred tax assets may
be realized, we consider whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the net deferred tax assets may not be
realized. The ultimate realization of net deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income during the
periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Estimates may change as new events occur, estimates of future
taxable income during the carryforward period are reduced or increased, additional information becomes available or operating
environments change, which may result in a full or partial reversal of the valuation allowance. We will continue to assess the
adequacy of the valuation allowance on a quarterly basis. Our judgments and tax strategies are subject to audit by various taxing
authorities.

The objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and
deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in an entity’s financial
statements or tax returns. We recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax
position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits
recognized in the financial statements from such a position should be measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than
50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Accounting literature also provides guidance on derecognition of
income tax assets and liabilities, classification of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities, accounting for interest and
penalties associated with tax positions, and income tax disclosures. Judgment is required in assessing the future tax consequences
of events that have been recognized in our financial statements or tax returns. Variations in the actual outcome of these future tax
consequences could materially impact our financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

Our revenues are primarily generated from the manufacturing of custom-engineered products and systems under long-term fixed-
price contracts that may last from one month to several years, depending on the contract. Revenue from these contracts is generally
recognized over time utilizing the cost-to-cost method to measure the extent of progress toward the completion of the performance
obligation and the recognition of revenue over time. We believe that this method is the most accurate representation of our
performance because it directly measures the value of the services transferred to the customer over time as we incur costs on our
contracts. Contract costs include all direct materials, labor and indirect costs related to contract performance, which may include
indirect labor, supplies, tools, repairs and depreciation costs.

We also have contracts to provide value-added services such as field service inspection, installation, commissioning, modification
and repair, as well as retrofit and retrofill components for existing systems. As a practical expedient, if the service contract terms
give us the right to invoice the customer for an amount that corresponds directly with the value of our performance completed to
date (i.e., a service contract in which we bill a fixed amount for each hour of service provided), then we recognize revenue over
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time in each reporting period corresponding to the amount with which we have the right to invoice. Our performance obligations
are satisfied as the work progresses.

We also have sales orders for spare parts and replacement circuit breakers for switchgear that are obsolete or that are no longer
produced by the original manufacturer. Revenues from these sales orders are recognized at a point in time when we fulfill our
performance obligation to the customer, which is typically upon shipment.

Additionally, some contracts may contain a cancellation clause that could limit the amount of revenue we are able to recognize
over time. In these instances, revenue and costs associated with these contracts are deferred and recognized at a point in time when
the performance obligation is fulfilled.

Selling and administrative costs incurred in relation to obtaining a contract are typically expensed as incurred. We periodically
utilize a third-party sales agent to obtain a contract and will pay a commission to that agent. We record the full commission liability
to the third-party sales agent at the order date, with a corresponding deferred asset. As the project progresses, we record commission
expense based on percentage of completion rates that correlate to the project and reduce the deferred asset. Once we have been
paid by the customer, we pay the commission, and the deferred liability is reduced.

Warranty Costs

We provide for estimated warranty costs with the recognition of revenue based upon historical rates applicable to individual product
lines. In addition, specific provisions are made when the costs of such warranties are expected to exceed accruals. Our standard
terms and conditions of sale include a warranty for parts and service for the earlier of 18 months from the date of shipment or 12
months from the date of energization, whichever occurs first. Occasionally projects require warranty terms that are longer than
our standard terms due to the nature of the project. Extended warranty terms may be negotiated and included in our contracts. We
use past experience and historical claims to determine the estimated liability. Actual results could differ from our estimate.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development activities are directed toward the development of new products and processes as well as improvements
in existing products and processes. These costs, which primarily include salaries, contract services and supplies, are expensed as
incurred. Such amounts were $6.3 million, $6.7 million and $6.9 million in Fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency for our foreign subsidiaries is the local currency in which the entity is located. The financial statements
of all subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the U.S. Dollar have been translated into U.S. Dollars. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated into U.S. Dollars using year-end exchange rates, and all revenues and expenses are
translated at average rates during the respective period. The U.S. Dollar results that arise from such translation, as well as exchange
gains and losses on intercompany balances of a long-term investment nature, are included in the cumulative currency translation
adjustments in accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity.

Stock-Based Compensation

We measure stock-based compensation cost at the grant date based on the fair value of the award. Compensation expense is
recognized over the period during which the recipient is required to provide service in exchange for the awards, typically the
vesting period. Excess income tax benefits related to share-based compensation expense is recognized as income tax expense or
benefit in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Cash paid when directly withholding shares on an employee's behalf for tax
withholding purposes is classified as a financing activity. We account for forfeitures as they occur, rather than estimate expected
forfeitures.

New Accounting Standards

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued a new standard on revenue recognition that supersedes
previously issued revenue recognition guidance. This standard provides a five-step approach to be applied to all contracts with
customers and requires expanded disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue (and the related cash
flows) arising from customer contracts, significant judgments and changes in judgments used in applying the revenue model and
the assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. Effective October 1, 2018, we adopted this standard using
a modified retrospective basis. After evaluating the impact of this new standard on contracts outstanding as of October 1, 2018,
we determined that no adjustment to retained earnings was necessary. See Note E for further discussion of revenue.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued a new topic on leases that requires lessees to recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the
balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than twelve months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with
classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income statement. A modified retrospective transition approach
is required for lessees for capital and operating leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented in the financial statements, with certain practical expedients available. The new topic is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years which will be our fiscal year ending
September 30, 2020. In Fiscal 2018, we acquired new lease software designed to assist in our compliance with this new topic. We
anticipate recording right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in similar amounts of less than $10 million on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets as of October 1, 2019, and do not anticipate a material adjustment to retained earnings will be necessary. We do not expect
this topic to have a significant effect on our Consolidated Statements of Operations or Statements of Cash Flows.

In November 2016, the FASB issued a new topic on the statement of cash flows that changes the presentation of restricted cash and
cash equivalents on the statement of cash flows. Restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents will be included with cash and
cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows.
We adopted this topic in Fiscal 2019, and our Consolidated Cash Flow Statements for all periods reflect this presentation.

In May 2017, the FASB issued a new topic on modification accounting with regards to stock-based compensation. This new topic
clarifies when a change to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award should be accounted for as a modification. An
entity should account for the effects of a modification unless the fair value, vesting conditions and classification, as an equity
instrument or a liability instrument, of the modified award are the same before and after a change to the terms or conditions of the
share-based payment award. We adopted this topic in Fiscal 2019, and it has not had a material impact on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets or Statements of Operations.

C. Earnings Per Share

We compute basic earnings per share by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per common and potential common share includes the weighted average of additional shares
associated with the incremental effect of dilutive restricted stock and restricted stock units, as prescribed by the FASB guidance
on earnings per share.

The following table reconciles basic and diluted weighted average shares used in the computation of earnings per share (in
thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended September 30,

2019 2018 2017
Numerator:
NEL INCOME (10SS) v..vivvierierieiiiieeieteeieeeere ettt ete ettt eteeteete et e s e sse st e s essessessessessereeseens $ 9,800 § (7,152) $ (9,486)
Denominator: I
Weighted average basic SHares ..........ccoocveeereerieiieseiiee e e 11,571 11,507 11,453
Dilutive effect of restricted StOCK UNItS.........cceeviiiiiieeiiiiieeiecce e 63 — —
Weighted average diluted shares with assumed conversions............cccccceceveenieencne. 11,634 11,507 11,453
Earnings (loss) per share:
BaSIC. ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et et et et e e ene et eneenan $ 085 $ (0.62) $ (0.83)
DAIULEA. ... e e en e $ 085 $§ (062) §  (0.83)

For the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, we incurred net losses; therefore, all potential common shares were deemed
to be anti-dilutive.
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D. Detail of Selected Balance Sheet Accounts
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Activity in our allowance for doubtful accounts consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30,
2019 2018
Balance at beginning Of PETIOQ .......cocveuiiieiiieiitiieieietet ettt ettt eteeteeeeressesessese s esesesesesasseneas $ 157 $ 179
Bad debt EXPENSE ...veevviiieiiciieiieiete ettt sttt ettt b e et e be st e e reesbeereebeereebeenaenrens 233 111
Uncollectible accounts written off, Net Of TECOVETIES ......evvuerriririiieiiierieeiieree et ecre e eeve e esaee e (81) (125)
Change due to foreign currency translation...........cceeeereeiereeieseeiese ettt seeaesee e see e eeneneens ®) 8
Balance at end Of PEriod ........covieiiriieiiiiciecieie ettt ettt be e eaeeaeeaeeraeaeennenraas $ 301 S 157
Inventories
The components of inventories are summarized below (in thousands):
September 30,
2019 2018
Raw materials, parts and SUbaSSEMDBIIES ... .......c.ecvevirieiiieiiietiieieicte ettt ev et sneaeas $ 31,781 $ 24,563
WOTK-IN-PIOZIESS ...vvevvivienrieteetiertesteetesseestesteessesseessesseesesssesseessessesssaseassesseessesssessesssessesssessenssesens 1,100 1,080
Provision for excess and 0bSOIEte INVENTOLY .....cc.eeruerieriieieriieieniieienteeiestteteereetesneeneesneenseeneenens (3,679) (4,291)
TOAL TIIVETIEOTIES ....vevvieieeee ettt ettt et eee e ae et et e eas e teesseeeeeasesaeensesssensesesensesasessesrsensesnnanseas $ 290202 $ 21,352
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are summarized below (in thousands):
September 30, Range of
2019 2018 Asset Lives
LANA -ttt h bbbt bbb saesnen $ 21,963 $ 22,207 —
Buildings and improvements ............c.coevereeiereeieneeiee et 122,404 123,320 3 -39 Years
Machinery and eqUIPMENL .........cc.eeeeruerrierueeiereestesteeteeseenseeseesseeeesseesessesssessees 106,137 104,542 3 - 15 Years
Furniture and fIXTUTES ......oovviiiieiiiieeie et 3,611 3,799 3 -10 Years
CONSIIUCTION 11 PLOCESS . +.uveuvenrieneeeneeuesuierseetesseesesseesesseanseeseenseeneesseensesseensessenn 2,118 357 —
256,233 § 254,225
Less: Accumulated depreciation ............c.evueeverieeiieieesieeiesieeeesneeeesreeeeseeesesenes (135,421) (125,461)
Total property, plant and equipment, Net...........ccererreeririenieseniee e $§ 120,812 § 128,764

There were no assets under capital lease as of September 30, 2019 or September 30, 2018. Depreciation expense was $11.9 million,
$12.7 million and $12.4 million for fiscal years 2019, 2018, and 2017, respectively.

Accrued Product Warranty

Activity in our product warranty accrual consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30,
2019 2018
Balance at beginning Of PEriOQ...........c.ovviviiiiiiieiieiei ettt ettt eveeve et s s e ssenes $ 2,604 $ 3,174
INCIEaSE t0 WAITANLY CXPEIISE ...veveeutieueeteeeesteetesteetesteeteeseenteeseenseeneenseeneesseensesseensesneesesneensesneansens 3,004 2,031
Deduction for Warranty Charges.........c.coveeuerierierierieiiesie e ettt eee st eteseeeaesseesesneensesseensesnnensens (2,649) (2,574)
Change due to foreign currency translation...........cceecveriieierieeiesiieiesie et eee e eae e esaeseesaeeenensens (13) 27
Balance at end of PEriod ...........ooiiiiriiiieieeee ettt ettt st et eebeenennenean $ 2,946 $ 2,604
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E. Revenue

On October 1, 2018, we adopted the new revenue recognition standard using the modified retrospective transition method. We
applied the guidance in the standard to customer contracts that were not substantially complete at that time and we determined
that no adjustment to retained earnings was necessary. Financial results for reporting periods after October 1, 2018 are reported
under the new standard; however, financial results for prior periods were not adjusted and will continue to be presented in accordance
with the previous standard.

Revenue Recognition

The majority of our revenues are generated from the manufacturing of custom-engineered products and systems under long-term
fixed-price contracts under which we agree to manufacture various products such as traditional and arc-resistant distribution
switchgear and control gear, medium-voltage circuit breakers, monitoring and control communications systems, motor control
centers and bus duct systems. These products may be sold separately as an engineered solution, but are typically integrated into
custom-built enclosures which we also build. These enclosures are referred to as power control room substations (PCRs®), custom-
engineered modules or electrical houses (E-Houses). Some contracts may also include the installation and the commissioning of
these enclosures.

Revenue from these contracts is generally recognized over time utilizing the cost-to-cost method to measure the extent of progress
toward the completion of the performance obligation and the recognition of revenue over time. We believe that this method is the
most accurate representation of our performance, because it directly measures the value of the services transferred to the customer
over time as we incur costs on our contracts. Contract costs include all direct materials, labor, and indirect costs related to contract
performance, which may include indirect labor, supplies, tools, repairs and depreciation costs.

We also have contracts to provide value-added services such as field service inspection, installation, commissioning, modification
and repair, as well as retrofit and retrofill components for existing systems. As a practical expedient, if the service contract terms
give us the right to invoice the customer for an amount that corresponds directly with the value of our performance completed to
date (i.e., a service contract in which we bill a fixed amount for each hour of service provided), then we recognize revenue over
time in each reporting period corresponding to the amount with which we have the right to invoice. Our performance obligations
are satisfied as the work progresses. Revenues from our custom-engineered products and value-added services transferred to
customers over time accounted for approximately 94% of revenues for the year ended September 30, 2019.

We also have sales orders for spare parts and replacement circuit breakers for switchgear that are obsolete or that are no longer
produced by the original manufacturer. Revenues from these sales orders are recognized at the time we fulfill our performance
obligation to the customer, which is typically upon shipment and represented approximately 6% of revenues for the year ended
September 30, 2019.

Additionally, some contracts may contain a cancellation clause that could limit the amount of revenue we are able to recognize
over time. In these instances, revenue and costs associated with these contracts are deferred and recognized at a point in time when
the performance obligation is fulfilled.

Selling and administrative costs incurred in relation to obtaining a contract are typically expensed as incurred. We periodically
utilize a third-party sales agent to obtain a contract and will pay a commission to that agent. We record the full commission liability
to the third-party sales agent at the order date, with a corresponding deferred asset. As the project progresses, we record commission
expense based on percentage of completion rates that correlate to the project and reduce the deferred asset. Once we have been
paid by the customer, we pay the commission, and the deferred liability is reduced.

Performance Obligations

A performance obligation is a promise in a contract or with a customer to transfer a distinct good or service. A contract’s transaction
price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation and recognized as revenue as the performance obligations are satisfied.
To determine the proper revenue recognition for contracts, we evaluate whether a contract should be accounted for as more than
one performance obligation or, less commonly, whether two or more contracts should be combined and accounted for as one
performance obligation. This evaluation of performance obligations requires significant judgment. The majority of our contracts
have a single performance obligation where multiple engineered products and services are combined into a single custom-
engineered solution. Our contracts generally include a standard assurance warranty that typically ends 18 months after shipment.
Occasionally, we provide service-type warranties that will extend the warranty period. These extended warranties qualify as a
separate performance obligation, and revenue is deferred and recognized over the warranty period. If we determine during the
evaluation of the contract that there are multiple performance obligations, we allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation using our best estimate of the standalone selling price of each distinct good or service in the contract.
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Remaining unsatisfied performance obligations, which we refer to as backlog, represent the estimated transaction price for goods
and services for which we have a material right, but work has not been performed. As of September 30, 2019, we had backlog of
$419.0 million, of which approximately $345 million is expected to be recognized as revenue within the next twelve months.
Backlog may not be indicative of future operating results as orders may be cancelled or modified by our customers. Our backlog
does not include service and maintenance-type contracts for which we have the right to invoice as services are performed.

Contract Estimates

Actual revenues and project costs may vary from previous estimates due to changes in a variety of factors. The cost estimation
process is based upon the professional knowledge and experience of our engineers, project managers and financial professionals.
Factors that are considered in estimating the work to be completed and ultimate contract recovery include the availability and
productivity of labor, the nature and complexity of the work to be performed, the availability of materials, and the effect of any
delays on our project performance. We periodically review our job performance, job conditions, estimated profitability and final
contract settlements, including our estimate of total costs and make revisions to costs and income in the period in which the
revisions are probable and reasonably estimable. Whenever revisions of estimated contract costs and contract values indicate that
the contract costs will exceed estimated revenues, thus creating a loss, a provision for the total estimated loss is recorded in that
period.

For the years ended September 30,2019 and 2018, our operating results were positively impacted by $5.1 million and $3.9 million,
respectively, as a result of changes in contract estimates related to projects in progress at the beginning of the respective period.
These changes in estimates resulted primarily from favorable project execution and negotiations of variable consideration, discussed
below, as well as other changes in facts and circumstances during these periods.

Variable Consideration

It is common for our long-term contracts to contain variable consideration that can either increase or decrease the transaction price.
Due to the nature of our contracts, estimating total cost and revenue can be complex and subject to variability due to change orders,
back charges, spare parts, early completion bonuses, customer allowances and liquidated damages. We estimate the amount of
variable consideration based on the expected value method, which is the sum of probability-weighted amount, or the most likely
amount method, which uses various factors including experience with similar transactions and assessment of our anticipated
performance. Variable consideration is included in the transaction price if legally enforceable and to the extent it is probable that
asignificantreversal of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur once the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration
is resolved.

Contract Modifications

Contracts may be modified for changes in contract specifications and requirements. We consider contract modifications to exist
when the modification either creates new or changes the enforceable rights and obligations under the contract. Most of our contract
modifications are for goods and services that are not distinct from the existing performance obligation. Contract modifications
result in a cumulative catch-up adjustment to revenue based on our measure of progress for the performance obligation.

Contract Balances

The timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections affects accounts receivable, costs and estimated earnings in excess
of billings on uncompleted contracts (contract assets) and billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted
contracts (contract liabilities) in our Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Contract assets, previously referred to as costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts, are recorded
when revenues are recognized in excess of amounts billed for fixed-price contracts as determined by the billing milestone schedule.
Contract assets are transferred to accounts receivable when billing milestones have been met, or we have an unconditional right
to payment.

Contract liabilities, previously referred to as billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts, typically
represent advance payments from contractual billing milestones and billings in excess of revenue recognized. It is unusual to have
advanced milestone payments with a term greater than one year, which could represent a financing component on the contract.

Our contract assets and liabilities are reported in a net position on a contract-by-contract basis at the end of each reporting period
and are generally classified as current.
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Contract assets and liabilities as of September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018 are summarized below (in thousands):

September 30,
2019 2018
(0]0) 115 = Yo A T 1 - OO $ 55,374 $ 82,545
Contract HaAbIIITIES ....c.ecvveiiiieiicieie ettt aesreesesaeeneenees (71,464) (43,174)
Net contract asset (iability)........coveoverieieieirieiiee et $ (16,090) $ 39,371

The decrease in net contract asset to a contract liability at September 30, 2019 from September 30, 2018 was primarily due to our
progress towards completion on our projects and the timing of contract billing milestones and new orders. To determine the amount
ofrevenue recognized during the period from contract liabilities, we first allocate revenue to the individual contract liability balance
outstanding at the beginning of the period until the revenue exceeds that balance. During the year ended September 30, 2019, we
recognized revenue of approximately $39.5 million related to contract liabilities outstanding at September 30, 2018.

The timing of our invoice process is typically dependent on the completion of certain milestones and contract terms and subject
to agreement by our customer. Payment is typically expected within 30 days of invoice. Any uncollected invoiced amounts for
our performance obligations recognized over time, including contract retentions, are recorded as accounts receivable in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Certain contracts contain retention provisions that become due upon completion of contractual
requirements. As of September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018, accounts receivable included retention amounts of $5.6 million
and $4.2 million, respectively. Of the retained amount at September 30, 2019, $4.9 million is expected to be collected in the next
twelve months.

Disaggregation of Revenue

The following tables present our disaggregated revenue by geographic destination and market sector for the year ended
September 30, 2019 (in thousands):

2019
UNIEEA STALES ... veeeuviitieeieeitieeiteeetteeiteeeteeeteesteeesaeessaeasseesseessseessseasseessseasseensssessaensssansaesssaenssessseanssesssssnsaenssssnsens $ 406,609
(O 4 V- T ISR 64,326
Europe, Middle East and ALTICA ........ccuieiiiiiiiiiiiciicie ettt ettt ettt saeesaesaeesaesaeensesssensesneenseennenns 32,166
ASIA/PACITIC. ...t e e et e e e e e et e e erae e eneaeentreean 11,405
Mexico, Central and SOUh AIETICA ........c.eeeeeueieieiieeeeeeeeeee et e eee e e e e eeaeeeeeaeeeeaeeseeseeeessseesenssesenseeeenseeeens 2,674
Total revenues by geographic deStNALION ...........cccvivvieriierieriiieete ettt ere et steeeesreessesseessesreesaesreennas $ 517,180

2019
OIL AN ZAS .. .vetevitiieteetetet ettt ettt et e st eteeteetesteesestesessensensensentassessaseesseseeseeaeeseeseeseesensensensensensensansenseneeneeneas $ 242,291
PEITOCREIMICAL .......ooeiiiiiiiieeeee e ettt e e e e e e et e e e ente s e eaaeeeeaeeeenaaeeeeraeeeenaeeeetreeennees 93,391
ELECLIIC TEILIEY ..ttt ettt ettt ettt et e et e e st ea e esteaeebeebeeae et e ebeeaeeb e sense s ensenseneeneeneeneeneenea 84,993
B et (o) 0 T o o)) SRR 26,781
F N 011 4 1<) 4P 69,724
Total revenues DY MArKEt SECLOT ......cuiiviiieiiieieieeieete ettt ettt sttt ae e ebeeteebeess e beessesseessesreessesseennas $ 517,180

F. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Our intangible assets consist of goodwill of $1.0 million, which is not being amortized, and purchased technology of $0.3 million,
which is amortized over its estimated useful life. No impairment expense has been recorded for the last three fiscal years.
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Intangible assets balances, subject to amortization, at September 30, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30, 2019 September 30, 2018
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Value Amortization Value Value Amortization Value
Purchased technology............ccccceue.... $§ 11,749 § (11,415) § 334§ 11,749 § (11,239) $ 510

Amortization of intangible assets recorded for the years ended September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017 was $0.2 million, $0.2
million and $0.4 million, respectively.

Estimated amortization expense for each of the five subsequent fiscal years is expected to be (in thousands):

Years Ended September 30, Total

2020 .. b b e bttt R Rt R e a e ea e R he et a e e e e et et neeneeneeneene e $ 177
2021 et bbb h ettt e R e a e bt h e eh e b b sa et be e et eaeene e ere e 157
2022 .ttt ettt ettt e a e a e bt e u e eh ke b e sa ettt e e e Rt e a e e atea e bt eh e eh e bRt sa b e b et et e s et eneeueeneeueenee —
2023 ettt h e e h ekt h e et e h et eae e bt e e e s a e e aae s he e b h e e b e h et e ets et e eanesaeennesaeennes —
2024 ..ttt e h e a e bbb sa et bttt e Reea e bt e h e ea ek e b sa et be st e s et st eaneneeneeneen —

On August 7, 2006, we purchased certain assets related to the manufacturing of ANSI medium-voltage switchgear and circuit
breaker business from General Electric Company (GE). In connection with the acquisition, we entered into a 15-year supply
agreement with GE pursuant to which GE would purchase from us all of its requirements for ANSI medium-voltage switchgear
and circuit breakers and other related equipment and components (the Products). We recorded an intangible asset related to this
supply agreement. On December 30,2013, we and GE amended the supply agreement to allow GE to manufacture similar Products
for sale immediately and allow them to begin purchasing Products from other suppliers beginning December 31, 2014. In return,
GE paid us $10 million upon execution of the amended supply agreement and agreed to pay an additional $7 million over three
years, beginning March 2015. The final balance of $2.3 million was received in April 2017. We wrote off the intangible asset
related to the original supply agreement and recorded a deferred credit in the amount of $8.1 million at December 31, 2013, the
amount by which the total proceeds from GE exceeded the unamortized balance of our intangible asset. We amortized this deferred
credit over the four-year life of the agreement and recorded $0.5 million in other income in Fiscal 2018, and $2.0 million in both
Fiscal 2017 and 2016.

G. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30,
2019 2018
Industrial development reVenUEe DONAS ..........coeviieiiiirieriitiiticieciet ettt ettt ete e etesreereese s ssennas $ 1,200 $ 1,600
LeSS: CUITENE POTTION ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et ettt eae e bt et e bt e st e seeemteseeesesseenaeeneenseas (400) (400)
Total 10NG-tETM AEDE ....c.eveeiiieieiieietiect ettt ettt ese s te s sessesessesessensesensenan $ 800 $ 1,200
The annual maturities of long-term debt as of September 30, 2019, were as follows (in thousands):
Long-Term
Debt
Year Ending September 30, Maturities
2020 ettt ettt ekttt ettt et et et et et et entententen e et e eReeR e ekt ek e R e s ansensensenten s enten e eneeReeR e es e ek e eRees e ke se s et ensentententeneeneeneenes $ 400
2021 ettt bbbt bttt h bttt ea e a b e a e bt bt bt bt btk h et ettt oo st et bt ehe e bt ebe b ebes 400
2022 ettt ettt a e a e h e ea ekt eh e eh e ekt ek e AR et e s e a b et enten s en e eh e ekt eh e eh e ekt ek e he e E e ket et enten s e st eneeneebeeaeebeebes —
202 ettt ettt ettt eateatea e sttt eR e Rt ek ek e R e s easea s et ententeatenteReeReeR e ekt ke eRees et ese s ensensenteneeneeneeneeneenas —
D024 ..ottt h e h ekt he e a e eh ke h ettt ea e h e heeh e ekt e bt e bt eh e e b he ettt e bt eatea b eneeneeheeueeueebeebes —
Total 1ong-term debt MATUITHIES .....ecvertieieiieieiieieeteieeteteetesteeteeteessesreessessaessesssesseessesseessesseessesseessesseesseeses $ 800
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U.S. Revolver

On September 27, 2019, we entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with Bank of America, N.A. (the "U.S.
Revolver"), which replaced our prior credit agreement. The U.S. Revolver is a $75.0 million revolving credit facility, which is
available for both borrowings and letters of credit and expires September 2024. As of September 30, 2019, there were no amounts
borrowed under this facility and letters of credit outstanding were $13.4 million. As of September 30, 2019, $61.6 million was
available for the issuance of letters of credit and borrowing under the U.S. Revolver. In addition, the U.S. Revolver includes a
right of the Company to request from time to time an increase in the revolving line of credit of up to $50.0 million, provided that
(1) no default exists, (ii) each request must be in a minimum amount of $15.0 million (or, if less, the remaining portion of the
increase), (iii) the Company may make a maximum of four such requests and (iv) each lender may agree whether or not to increase
its revolving commitment.

We are required to maintain certain financial covenants, the most significant of which are a consolidated leverage ratio greater
than 3.0 to 1.0 and a consolidated interest coverage ratio of less than 3.0 to 1.0. Additionally, we must maintain a consolidated
cash balance of $30 million at all times. The U.S. Revolver also contains a "material adverse effect" clause which is a material
change in our operations, business, properties, liabilities or condition (financial or otherwise) or a material impairment of our
ability to perform our obligations under our credit agreements. As of September 30, 2019, we were in compliance with all of the
financial covenants of the U.S. Revolver.

As of September 30, 2018, the balance in the cash collateral account was $25.1 million and was recorded as restricted cash in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets, which was required by our prior credit agreement. The portion of the cash collateral account associated
with the outstanding letters of credit that were due to expire beyond twelve months was classified as non-current restricted cash.
Our U.S. Revolver removes the previous requirement for all letters of credit and borrowings to be collateralized at 102%.

The U.S. Revolver allows the Company to elect that any borrowing under the facility bear an interest rate based on either the base
rate or the eurocurrency rate, in each case, plus the applicable rate. The base rate is generally the highest of (a) the federal funds
rate plus 0.50%, (b) the Bank of America prime rate and (c) the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 1.00%, subject
to certain interest rate floors set forth in the U.S. Revolver. The eurocurrency rate is generally (i) LIBOR for credit extensions
denominated in U.S. dollars, euros or pound sterling, (ii) the Canadian dollar offered rate for credit extensions denominated in
Canadian dollars and (iii) the rate designated by Bank of America for credit extensions denominated in other currencies. The
applicable rate is generally a range from (0.25)% to 0.25% for base rate loans and 1.25% to 1.75% for eurocurrency rate loans,
in each case based on the Company's consolidated leverage ratio, provided that the applicable rate is initially (0.25)% for base
rate loans and 1.25% for eurocurrency rate loans until January 1, 2020.

The U.S. Revolver is collateralized by a pledge of 100% of the voting capital stock of each of our domestic subsidiaries and 65%
ofthe voting capital stock of each non-domestic subsidiary. The U.S. Revolver provides for customary events of default and carries
cross-default provisions with other existing debt agreements. If an event of default (as defined in the U.S. Revolver) occurs and
is continuing, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the U.S. Revolver, amounts and letters of credit outstanding
under the U.S. Revolver may be accelerated and may become immediately due and payable.

Industrial Development Revenue Bonds

We borrowed $8.0 million in October 2001 through a loan agreement funded with proceeds from tax-exempt industrial development
revenue bonds (Bonds). These Bonds were issued by the Illinois Development Finance Authority and were used for the completion
of our Northlake, Illinois facility. Pursuant to the Bond issuance, a reimbursement agreement between us and a major domestic
bank required an issuance by the bank of an irrevocable direct-pay letter of credit (Bond LC), as collateral, to the Bonds’ trustee
to guarantee payment of the Bonds’ principal and interest when due. The Bond LC is subject to both early termination and extension
provisions customary to such agreements. While the Bonds mature in 2021, the reimbursement agreement requires annual
redemptions of $0.4 million that commenced on October 25, 2002. A sinking fund is used for the annual principal payment. The
Bonds bear interest at a floating rate determined weekly by the Bonds’ remarketing agent, which was the underwriter for the Bonds
and is an affiliate of the bank. This interest rate was 1.69% as of September 30, 2019. As of September 30, 2019, we were in
compliance with all of the covenants of the Bonds.
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H. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

We lease certain offices, facilities and equipment under operating leases expiring at various dates through 2023. We also sublease
certain facilities that we are no longer occupying. Our sublease terms do not fully cover the existing rental commitments on certain
facilities.

At September 30, 2019, the future minimum annual rental commitments and expected receipts under non-cancelable operating
leases having terms in excess of one year were as follows (in thousands):

Operating Operating
Leases Sublease
Years Ended September 30, Payments Income
D020 ... oo eee e e e e s e e e e e et e et e e s et e et e e e e s e e e e e $ 3040 S (877)
2021 e 2,859 (1,028)
2022ttt et e h b s bbb sa et b e a ettt et ent bt eaeeae bt enesaeene b nae 2,612 (1,159)
2023 oottt e et e e st r e ee e 1,508 (943)
2024 .. ettt s 85 =
TRETEATIET ...c.cvenietieciic ettt ettt ettt sttt — —
Total 1€aSe COMMUILIMENLS ........c.eevvieriierierieetieteeeteeeeeteeteeteeteereeseeseeseeseeeseessesseessesseesesseesesseens $ 10,104 $ (4,007)

Lease expense and sublease income from third parties was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended September 30,

2019 2018 2017
LLEASE EXPENSE «..vovevevereeeeeeeeeteeeeteeseteeseseeseseesess et eseesessesessesessesensesenseseaseseeseseeneren $ 3493 § 3432 $ 3,734
Sublease income from third parties............cceeververieieriniienieiere e (1,280) (1,487) (1,389)

In Fiscal 2019, we recorded additional lease expense of $0.7 million related to certain facility leases in Canada that are no longer
utilized in our operations. In Fiscal 2018, we incurred approximately $0.8 million due to anticipated losses on the sublet of a
Canadian facility we exited in a prior period.

Letters of Credit, Bank Guarantees and Bonds

Certain customers require us to post letters of credit, bank guarantees or surety bonds. These security instruments assure that we
will perform under the terms of our contract. In the event of default, the counterparty may demand payment from the bank under
a letter of credit or bank guarantee, or performance by the surety under a bond. To date, there have been no significant expenses
related to security instruments for the periods reported. We were contingently liable for letters of credit of $13.4 million as of
September 30, 2019. We also had outstanding surety bonds totaling $170.5 million, with additional bonding capacity of $579.5
million available, at September 30, 2019.

We have an $11.1 million facility agreement (Facility Agreement) between Powell (UK) Limited and a large international bank
that provides Powell (UK) Limited the ability to enter into bank guarantees as well as forward exchange contracts and currency
options. At September 30, 2019, we had outstanding guarantees totaling $5.7 million and amounts available under this Facility
Agreement were $5.4 million. The Facility Agreement expires in May 2020 and provides for financial covenants and customary
events of default, and carries cross-default provisions with our U.S. Revolver. If an event of default (as defined in the Facility
Agreement) occurs and is continuing, per the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein, obligations outstanding under
the Facility Agreement may be accelerated and may become or be declared immediately due and payable. As of September 30,
2019, we were in compliance with all of the financial covenants of the Facility Agreement.
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Litigation

Weare involved in various legal proceedings, claims and other disputes arising from our commercial operations, projects, employees
and other matters which, in general, are subject to uncertainties and in which the outcomes are not predictable. Although we can
give no assurances about the resolution of pending claims, litigation or other disputes and the effect such outcomes may have on
us, management believes that any ultimate liability resulting from the outcome of such proceedings, to the extent not otherwise
provided or covered by insurance, will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of
operations or liquidity.

Liquidated Damages

Certain of our customer contracts have schedule and performance obligation clauses that, if we fail to meet them, could require
us to pay liquidated damages. Each individual contract defines the conditions under which the customer may make a claim against
us. As of September 30, 2019, our exposure to possible liquidated damages was $2.0 million, of which approximately $0.9 million
was probable. Based on our actual or projected failure to meet these various contractual commitments, $0.8 million has been
recorded as a reduction to revenue. We will attempt to obtain change orders, contract extensions or accelerate project completion,
which may resolve the potential for any unrecorded liquidated damage. Should we fail to achieve relief on some or all of these
contractual obligations, we could be required to pay additional liquidated damages, which could negatively impact our future
operating results.

I. Income Taxes

The components of the income tax provision (benefit) were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended September 30,

2019 2018 2017
Current:
FEAETAL.....eieeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt $ 1,350 3 973 % (7,782)
STALC. ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt h et n e aen b n bt ne e st st s enen 186 201 (101)
FOT@IGN ...viiviiiesteeecte ettt ettt ettt b e s te et e e e e sbeessesbeess e beesseneens 88 449 350
1,624 1,623 (7,533)
Deferred:
FOAETAL ... vttt ettt et b e be e ene 366 (1,834) 392
SEALE. .. evteveeteteetetetete ettt ettt ettt et b et ettt et et s et bt s s b e st b e st s ensetens s s enn 457 (247) (515)
0] (<) < 1 SRRSO 3) (89) 223
820 (2,170) 100
Total income tax provision (benefit).........ccoceevrveverrerierevieerieirieenene $ 2,444 § 547) $ (7,433)

Income (loss) before income taxes was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended September 30,

2019 2018 2017
LS ettt ettt ettt ettt et a sttt s et s et ettt ea e es st eee e s enens $ 11,859 $ (2,103) §  (19,932)
Other than U.LS........ooioiieeiieeece ettt neas 475 (5,596) 3,013
Income (10ss) before iNCOME tAXES ......ccveveveieieieieiieiiereeieeteete et $ 12,334 $ (7,699) $  (16,919)
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A reconciliation of the statutory U.S. income tax rate and the effective income tax rate, as computed on earnings before income
tax provision in each of the three years presented in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, was as follows:

Year Ended September 30,

2019 2018 2017

SEALULOTY TALE ..c.uveentieeiieeiieiiteeitee ettt ettt s e et e sate et e esbteeabeesbeeeabeesaaesnseesssesnneenne 21% 25% 35%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit...........cccoeevievieciinieciiieeceeeee e, 4 2) 2
Research and development Credit..........oooevuiriiiriiiiriiiinieecceeeeeeee e 7 9 9
Foreign rate differential..............cccooieviirieniicieeeeeeeee e 1 1 2
Foreign Withholding............ccveiiiiieiiiiieieie ettt eee 1 3) —
Foreign valuation alloWance ............ccccoveeriiieiiiienieeeeeseee e 2) (20) 2
NOL carryback impact on deductions.............cuerveerierierieeierieeieneeieseeeieseeesaesnees — — “)
Deferred tax rate differential...........cccccoeeeeriiiiniiieiieeeeeceeeeeee e — @) —
(0113 S OO USSR 2 1 2)
EffECTIVE TALE ..ottt eeens 20% 7% 44%

On December 22, 2017, the new tax law lowered the corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% effective January 1, 2018. As a result,
the U.S. federal statutory rate for Fiscal 2019 is 21%, compared to the blended statutory rate of 24.5% effective for Fiscal 2018.

Our income tax provision (benefit) reflects an effective tax rate on pre-tax results of 20% in Fiscal 2019 compared to 7% and 44%
in Fiscal 2018 and 2017, respectively. The effective rate for Fiscal 2019 approximated the U.S. federal statutory rate as favorable
adjustments related to the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards in Canada that were fully reserved with a valuation
allowance and the Research and Development Tax Credit (R&D Tax Credit) were largely offset by unfavorable adjustments
primarily related to state income taxes and other permanent items. Due to the loss position in Fiscal 2018, the effective tax rate
was negatively impacted by foreign losses reserved for with a valuation allowance as well as $0.5 million of tax expense related
to the re-measurement of U.S. deferred tax assets as a result of tax reform. Likewise, due to the loss in Fiscal 2017, the effective
tax rate was favorably impacted by the relative amounts of income/loss recognized in the various tax jurisdictions, the utilization
of net operating loss carryforwards in Canada that have been fully reserved with a valuation allowance, the lower tax rate in the
U.K., as well as $0.9 million of discrete items recognized during the year, primarily related to the R&D Tax Credit.

We have not recorded deferred income taxes on $19.4 million of undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries because of
management’s intent to indefinitely reinvest such earnings. Upon distribution of these earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise,
we may be subject to U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes. It is not practical, however, to estimate the amount of taxes
that may be payable on the eventual remittance of these earnings.

We are subject to income tax in the U.S., multiple state jurisdictions and certain international jurisdictions, primarily the U.K. and
Canada. We do not consider any state in which we do business to be a major tax jurisdiction. We remain open to examination in
the other jurisdictions as follows: Canada 2012 — 2018, United Kingdom 2017 — 2018 and the United States 2013 —2018. As of
September 30, 2019, we did not have any state audits underway that would have a material impact on our financial position or
results of operations.

The net deferred income tax asset was comprised of the following (in thousands):

September 30,
2019 2018
GIOSS ASSEES .. .eueieeieeeeeeeeee et eetee et e e eeeeeeeeeaseeaeeeesesseeessesaseeesseenseeeaseeaseenssesaseaessesaseesnseenseesnsesnseenneas $ 18,486 $ 22,480
Gross liabilities and valuation allOWanCe ...........c.cecvieeieiiierieeieecie et seveebe e (13,369) (16,543)
Net deferred INCOME tAX ASSEL .....v.eiieueieiieieeeeieeeeeeeeeeiteeeeeteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeesaneeeeneeseseeeenns $ 5117 $ 5,937
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The tax effect of temporary differences between U.S. GAAP accounting and federal income tax accounting creating deferred
income tax assets and liabilities was as follows (in thousands):

September 30,
2019 2018
Deferred Tax Assets:
NEL OPEIALING 10SS ...evivievieeeticeeteee ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et et s et ete et ets et eas et essesessesessesesesesseseaseseas $ 10,636 $ 13,444
Credit CATYTOTWALAS .....ooueeiiiiieiieiet e ettt et e e eat et et e et eseesaeeneesaeeneesaee 2,895 3,987
Deferred COMPENSALION ........eeueeiieiieeiieieeie ettt ete ettt et st et e ste e e sseeteestenseeneeseensasseensesseennenns 1,590 1,456
Uniform capitalization and INVENTOTY .........cc.eeeerieeieriieierreeiesreeeesseesesseesesseesesseessessesssesseessenns 983 1,043
Stock-based COMPENSALION ......ocuiiiiriieiiiiiieitiee ettt ettt ettt ettt et eb et b et es e e e e seeeneeeees 744 879
Reserve for accrued employee Denefits..........ccververierieiieriiiieieeieseeeee e 752 791
WaAITANEY ACCTUAL ....eviiiiiiieiieieieeieete ettt ettt et e st e b e te e b e s te e b e etaesbeessesseesseseesaesseessesseesseses 341 448
ACCIUCA LEZAL. ...ttt ettt ettt et e st e e s b e et e e bt entesbeenteeaeenteeneenneene 115 154
Postretirement benefits lability ........c.cccovieviirieieiiee et 110 112
GOOAWILL. ...ttt ettt b ettt b e st et e et e e st ebeeseebeebeabesbe et eabesbetensennens 44 54
(015 1S) OSSPSR 276 112
DETEITEd tAX ASSELS ...ovveeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeee e ettt e e e et e e e e e eeteeseeaeeeeenseeeenseseneeeennseseeneeseneeeans 18,486 22,480
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Depreciation and amOTtiZATION .........c.eeeveerierierreerteeeerteseesteeeesseeseesseessesseessessesssesseessesseessessesssesses (5,138) (6,946)
Deferred tax Habilities ... ..cccueeciieiiieiiecie ettt ettt sbeessaeebeesbaeenseeeeas (5,138) (6,946)
Less: valuation allOWANCE.........eeveruieieriieieeieiesitete st este et eteeitesteeatesseensesseensesseensesneensesneensesnnensens (8,231) (9,597)
Net dEfeITEd tAX @SSEL.....cvvieiieieeeeeeeeee ettt ettt eae st e eae st e saesnesaean $ 5117 $ 5,937

As of September 30, 2019, we had tax credit carryforwards of $2.0 million not reserved with a valuation allowance that are available
to reduce future U.S. federal tax liabilities. The majority of these tax credit carryforwards expire beginning in 2037. In addition,
we had international net operating loss carryforwards of $2.9 million that were not reserved with a valuation allowance available
to offset future taxable income in the respective jurisdictions, with less than 10% expiring in 2029 and the remainder having an
indefinite carryforward period.

We have established a valuation allowance in the amount of $8.2 million primarily related to the Canadian net deferred tax assets. In
assessing the realizability of net deferred tax assets, we consider whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
net deferred tax assets may not be realized. The ultimate realization of net deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of
future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.

A rollforward of the valuation allowance for the past three years is summarized below:

Balance at September 30, 2016 .........ccvooviieieieiieiieieteetieteet e ettt et et et et ereeseeteeteeteereeteeseese et esse s et ensessensensersensereeras $ 8,439
Charged t0 COSt ANA EXPEIISES .....euvieuieeieieetiete et et et et et et e et et e es e e bt eneeeteeneeeseenaeeseebeeseenseeseebeentebeensenbeeneeeseenes (260)
Charged t0 OthET ACCOUNLES .......evertieieeeietiettete e testeeteste et e bt eatesteesaesseenseeseenseeseensesseensessseseensenseensenseensenseensenneenes 588

Balance at September 30, 2017 ......ccvoviiiieieeieeieeietiete ettt ettt ettt re ettt te et et e eteeae et b e b e b eaberb st ereetsereereereenas $ 8,767
Charged t0 COSt ANA EXPEIISES . ...euveeueetieniertieieetteteetteteettebeette bt eute st enteeseemseeseenaeeseenseeneeaseesaeseensenbeensenseensesneenes 1,575
Charged t0 OthET ACCOUNLS .......cvieiieieeiieie ettt e et et et et e e st eneesseeneesseensesseensesseesesssensesnsensennsenseensenseanes (745)

Balance at September 30, 2018 .........ccvoiiiiieieeietietieteete ettt e ettt et et et et ereeteeteeteeteeteetaeaeebe s ase s et essensensesserseneereeras $ 9,597
Charged t0 COSt ANA EXPEIISES .....euveeuieeieieetieie et cete et te e et te bt et et es e bt e eeete e ee et e enaeeseebesseenbeeseanbeestebeensenbeeneenseenes (209)
Charged t0 OthETr ACCOUINLS .......e.vertieieeeieieetteteetesteetteste et eteestesseessesseensesseensesseenseeseensesssenseensenseensenseensenseensenseenes (1,157)

Balance at September 30, 2019 .......c.oviiiiiieeieieieeeee ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt a e bbb bt ss e st ereetsereereereenas $ 8,231
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of the unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would affect the effective
tax rate follows (in thousands):

Year Ended September 30,
2019 2018 2017
Balance at beginning of Period ..........ocooveveveuiiieieieiiicicieeceeeeeeee e $ 1,854 $ 1,219 3 1,046
Increases related to tax positions taken during the current period........................ 240 180 179
Increases related to tax positions taken during a prior period.............cceeveeueennenne. 609 455 338
Decreases related to expiration of statute of limitations ...........cceeceevevcereecennenne. — — —
Decreases related to settlement with taxing authorities ...........occeevereevereeeeennnne. — — (344)
Balance at end of Period..........ccveveieieiiiiiiciiceciccee e $ 2,703 $ 1,854  § 1,219

Our policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters as tax expense. The amount of interest and penalty
expense recorded for the year ended September 30, 2019 was not material.

Due to the expiration of certain federal statutes of limitations and voluntary filings, management believes that, within the next 12
months, itis reasonably possible that the unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by approximately $0.9 million and would positively
impact our effective tax rate. We are unable to make reasonably reliable estimates regarding the timing of future cash outflows,
if any, associated with the remaining unrecognized tax benefits.

In November 2018, we received a refund of $6.6 million related to the U.S. federal carryback claim filed for the Fiscal 2017 net
operating loss. Subsequently, we were notified that the IRS would conduct a review of the carryback claim. Management believes
that an adequate provision has been made for any adjustments that may result from tax examinations. However, the outcome of
tax audits cannot be predicted with certainty. If any issues addressed in our tax audits are resolved in a manner not consistent with
management’s expectations, we could be required to adjust our provision for income tax in the period such resolution occurs.

J. Employee Benefit Plans
Retirement Plans

We have defined employee contribution plans for substantially all of our U.S. employees (401(k) plan) and our Canadian employees
(Registered Retirement Savings Plan). We recognized expenses under these plans primarily related to matching contributions of
$3.2 million, $2.8 million and $2.8 million in Fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Deferred Compensation

We offer a non-qualified deferred compensation plan to a select group of management and highly compensated individuals. The
plan permits the deferral of up to 50% of a participant’s base salary and/or 100% of a participant’s annual incentive bonus. The
deferrals are held in a separate trust, an irrevocable rabbi trust (the Rabbi Trust), which has been established to administer the
plan. The Rabbi Trust is intended to be used as a source of funds to match respective funding obligations to participants. The assets
of the trust are subject to the claims of our creditors in the event that we become insolvent. Consequently, the Rabbi Trust qualifies
as a grantor trust for income tax purposes. We make periodic payments into company-owned life insurance policies held in this
Rabbi Trust to fund the expected obligations arising under this plan. The assets and liabilities of the plan are recorded in other
assets and deferred compensation, respectively, in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in the deferred
compensation balance are recorded to compensation expense and reflected within the selling, general and administrative line in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The plan is not qualified under Section 401 of the Internal Revenue code. We recorded
net compensation expense adjustments of $0.2 million related to this plan in Fiscal 2019. At September 30, 2019, total assets held
by the trustee were $6.8 million and recorded in other assets and the liability was $6.2 million and recorded in other long-term
liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Of the $6.8 million of assets held by the trustee, $6.7 million is invested in company-
owned life insurance policies and the remainder in mutual funds.

Certain former executives were provided an executive benefit plan that provides for fixed payments upon normal retirement on
or after age 65 and the completion of at least 10 years of continuous employment. The estimated present value of these payments
was accrued over the service life of these individuals, and $0.2 million is recorded in deferred compensation related to this executive
benefit plan. To assist in funding the deferred compensation liability, we invested in company-owned life insurance policies. The
cash surrender value of these policies is presented in other assets and was $3.2 million at September 30, 2019.
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Retiree Medical Plan

We have a plan that extends health benefits to retirees that are also available to active employees under our existing health plans.
This plan is unfunded. The plan provides coverage for employees with at least 10 years of service who are age 55 or older but less
than 65. The retiree is required to pay the COBRA rate less a subsidy provided by us based on years of service at the time of
retirement. The unfunded liability is recorded in other long-term liabilities and was $0.9 million as of both September 30, 2019
and 2018. Our net periodic postretirement benefit expenses have been less than $0.1 million for the last three fiscal years. Due to
the immateriality of the costs and liabilities of this plan, no further disclosure is being presented.

K. Stock-Based Compensation

We have the following stock-based compensation plans:
2014 Equity Incentive Plan

In February 2014, our stockholders approved and adopted at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan
(the 2014 Plan), which replaced our 2006 Equity Compensation Plan (2006 Plan). Persons eligible to receive awards under the
2014 Plan include our officers and employees. The 2014 Plan authorizes stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock,
restricted stock units and performance-based awards, as well as certain other awards.

In accordance with the 2014 Plan, the compensation committee has authorized grants of restricted stock units (RSUs) to certain
officers and key employees of the company. The fair value of the RSUs is based on the closing price of our common stock as
reported on the NASDAQ Global Market on the grant dates. Typically, these grants vest over a three-year period from their date
of issuance. Fifty to sixty percent of the grant is time-based and vests over a three-year period on each anniversary of the grant
date, based on continued employment. The remaining forty to fifty percent of the grant is earned based on the three-year earnings
performance of the Company following the grant date. At September 30, 2019, there were 131,850 RSUs outstanding. The RSUs
do not have voting rights but receive dividend equivalents upon vesting. Additionally, the shares of common stock underlying the
RSUs are not considered issued and outstanding until vested and common stock is issued.

Total RSU activity (number of shares) for the past fiscal year is summarized below:

Number of ‘Weighted
Restricted Average
Stock Grant Value
Units Per Share
Outstanding at September 30, 2018 .........coiiiieiiieieiee ettt et eseere st etesbeesessessennenean 190,500 $ 33.73
(€ 1<)« PR 77,150 34.89
VST ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt eat e et e et e ete e st e e st e s e e st e s e enaeeaeera e seesb et e enbeententeeneeneentenneenaenns (117,684) 33.57
Forfeited/Cancelled..........oouiiiiiiiieie ettt e te et e eeba e raesebaessaeenaeens (18,116) 33.75
Outstanding at September 30, 2019.........ccoviirieiieieiierieeeee ettt et te st essesneessesseenseennensens 131,850 $ 33.76

We have reserved 750,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the 2014 Plan. As of September 30,2019, there were 554,801
shares of common stock available for future grants.

2014 Non-Employee Director Equity Incentive Plan

In February 2014, our stockholders approved the 2014 Non-Employee Director Equity Incentive Plan (the 2014 Director Plan). The
total number of shares of common stock reserved under the plan is 150,000 shares. The plan is administered by the compensation
committee. Eligibility to participate in the plan is limited to those individuals who are members of the Board of Directors of the
Company and who are not employees of the Company or any affiliate of the Company.

Under the terms of the 2014 Director Plan, the maximum number of shares that may be granted during any calendar year to any
individual is 12,000 shares. The total number of shares that may be issued for awards to any single participant during a calendar
year for other stock-based awards (excluding stock options and SARs) is 4,000 shares. The Compensation Committee has
determined that each non-employee director will receive 2,000 restricted shares of the Company’s common stock annually. Fifty
percent of the restricted stock granted to each of our non-employee directors vests immediately, while the remaining fifty percent
vests on the anniversary of the grant date. Compensation expense is based on the closing share price on the grant date and recognized
immediately for the first fifty percent of the restricted stock granted, while compensation expense for the remaining fifty percent
will be recognized over the remaining vesting period.
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Under this 2014 Director Plan, in February 2019, 7,000 shares of common stock and 7,000 shares of restricted stock were issued
to our non-employee directors at a price of $34.02 per share. In February 2018, we issued 6,000 shares of restricted stock to our
non-employee directors at a price of $27.88 per share, and in April 2018, we issued 1,000 shares of restricted stock to a single
non-employee director at a price of $27.15. The total number of shares of common stock available for future awards under the
2014 Director plan was 56,600 shares as of September 30, 2019.

At both September 30, 2019 and 2018, there were 7,000 shares of unvested restricted stock outstanding. Total compensation
expense related to restricted stock grants under all plans was $0.5 million, $0.5 million and $0.7 million for the years ended
September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Total compensation expense related to RSUs under all plans was $3.3 million,

$2.7 million and $2.0 million for the years ended September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

We record the amortization of non-vested restricted stock and restricted stock units as an increase to additional paid-in capital. As
of September 30, 2019 and 2018, amounts of deferred compensation expense not yet recognized related to non-vested stock and
RSUs totaled $1.0 million and $1.2 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2019, the total weighted average remaining
contractual life of our non-vested restricted stock and RSUs is approximately six months and 1.4 years, respectively.

L. Fair Value Measurements

We measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value. Fair value is defined as an “exit price,” which represents the amount
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the
measurement date. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market
participants would use in valuing an asset or liability. The accounting guidance requires the use of valuation techniques to measure
fair value that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. As a basis for considering such
assumptions and inputs, a fair value hierarchy has been established that identifies and prioritizes three levels of inputs to be used
in measuring fair value.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 — Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly, including:
quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets
that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market data and require the reporting entity to develop
its own assumptions.

The following table summarizes the fair value of our assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis
as of September 30, 2019 (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at September 30, 2019

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Observable Unobservable Fair Value at
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs September 30,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2019
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .............ccccevevevereeeeverererenennen. $ 118,639 $ — 3 — 3 118,639
Short-term INVESTMENTS .......oeeivivviiiiieieiiieeeeeeiieeeeeeeenees 6,042 — — 6,042
Other aSSELS...uiiiuiiiiieciiierieeie ettt e — 6,825 — 6,825
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation............cceceeveeeereeneeneeneneeenen. — 6,249 — 6,249
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The following table summarizes the fair value of our assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis
as of September 30, 2018 (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at September 30, 2018

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Observable Unobservable Fair Value at
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs September 30,
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2018
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .............ccccevevevereeeevererereeenne. $ 36,584 $ — — 36,584
Short-term INVEStMENTS .........ccvviieeeiieeeiieieeeceeeeeeeeeeenns 13,170 — — 13,170
Restricted cash......ccoouveiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 25,141 — — 25,141
(01015 g 1L — 6,817 — 6,817
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation.............ceceevueeeieneeieeneenenceneenen. — 5,644 — 5,644

Fair value guidance requires certain fair value disclosures be presented in both interim and annual reports. The estimated fair value
amounts of financial instruments have been determined using available market information and valuation methodologies described
below.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, primarily funds held in money market savings instruments, are reported at their current carrying value,
which approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments and are included in cash and cash equivalents in
our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Short-term Investments - Short-term investments include time deposits with original maturities of three months or more.

Restricted Cash - Restricted cash represented a pledged cash collateral balance, which was required under our prior credit agreement
and was held in an interest-bearing savings account. See Note G for further discussion on restricted cash.

Other Assets and Deferred Compensation — We hold investments in an irrevocable Rabbi Trust for our deferred compensation
plan. The assets are primarily related to company-owned life insurance policies and are included in other assets in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Because the mutual funds and company-owned life insurance policies are combined in the plan,
they are therefore categorized as Level 2 in the fair value measurement hierarchy. The deferred compensation liability represents
the investment options that the plan participants have designated to serve as the basis for measurement of the notional value of
their accounts. Because the deferred compensation liability is intended to offset the plan assets, it is therefore also categorized as
Level 2 in the fair value measurement hierarchy:.

M. Geographic Information

Revenues by country represent sales to unaffiliated customers as determined by the ultimate destination of our products and
services, summarized for the last three fiscal years by region in the table below (in thousands):

Year Ended September 30,

2019 2018 2017

UNIEEA STALES ....ovvevieeieeieeieeeeiieii ettt ettt et ettt et e b e s eseessesseseesserserseseeseaseeseesessenns $ 406,609 $§ 335743 $§ 279,352
CANAAA. ..ottt ettt ettt ettt te e teeteeteeaenan 64,326 42,235 45,540
Middle East and ALTICA ......c..oeeiviieeeeee et enee s 18,420 38,490 26,639
FaTl BAST o.voiiiiieeec et e e e et e e et e e e e e e 11,405 12,976 3,877
BUTOPE 1ttt et et ettt ettt ae s ses e b eneesensesansesensenensenesenn 13,746 10,538 21,194
Mexico, Central and SOUth AMETICA ..........cccveeeeiiiieiieeeeree e 2,674 8,734 19,309

TOLA] TEVEIMUES. ......eveieeieieie ettt ee e et e e e e et e e e e eaeeeaaesaeseaseenseesnneenneens $ 517,180 $ 448716 $ 395911
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Long-lived assets:

TUNIEEA STALES ..vvveeiiieiiieiee ettt ettt ettt e e e ettt e e s eeaaaeeeeseeaaaeeesssssaaaeeeeessnsaseeessennasaeeesssneseeeeas

September 30,

2019 2018
71,325 °$ 76,016
44,933 48,126

4,554 4,622
120,812 § 128,764

Long-lived assets by country consist of property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and are determined

based on the location of the tangible assets.

N. Quarterly Information

The table below sets forth the unaudited consolidated operating results by fiscal quarter for the years ended September 30, 2019

and 2018 (in thousands, except per share data):

REVENUES .....cceviieiieeiie e
GrOSS Profit .cceeceeeeeseeieeieieeieieeeeee e
Net income (10SS) ...vveeveerveeeveesiienieenneenns

Earnings (loss) per share:

Revenues.........cccooiiiiiiiiii
GroSS Profit .cceereeeereerienieieniececeeee
Net income (10SS) .....eoveveeveeerereneneruennen

Earnings (loss) per share:

2019 Quarters
First Second Third Fourth 2019
109351 $ 123,737 § 135,588 148,504 $ 517,180
14,631 20,075 23,715 28,555 86,976
(2,695) 958 5,089 6,538 9,890
(0.23) $ 0.08 $ 0.44 0.56 $ 0.85
0.23) $ 0.08 $ 0.44 056 $ 0.85
2018 Quarters
First Second Third Fourth 2018
90,184 $ 101,505 $ 122,130 134,807 $§ 448,716
10,554 12,421 18,375 24,005 65,355
(5,662) (3,330) 301 1,539 (7,152)
(0.49) $ 0.29) $ 0.03 $ 013 $ (0.62)
(0.49) $ (0.29) $ 0.03 $ 0.13 $ (0.62)

The sum of the individual earnings per share amounts may not agree with year-to-date earnings per share as each period’s
computation is based on the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period.

O. Subsequent Events

On November 4, 2019, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend on our common stock in the amount of $0.26
per share. The dividend is payable on December 18, 2019 to shareholders of record at the close of business on November 20, 2019.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established and maintain a system of disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to provide reasonable assurance
that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed with the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (Exchange Act), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms
ofthe SEC and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management, with the participation of our CEO and CFO, has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(¢e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period
covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on such evaluation, our CEO and CFO have each concluded that, as of
September 30, 2019, the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our disclosure controls and procedures
were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and
forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate,
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our system of internal control was designed using a top-down risk-based approach to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
inaccordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Due to its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting
may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become ineffective due to changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures.

Management of the Company has assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of September 30,
2019. Management evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the criteria in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO). Based on management’s evaluation, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was
effective at the reasonable assurance level as of September 30, 2019, based on criteria in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
(2013) issued by the COSO.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited and issued their report on the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2019, which appears in their report on the financial
statements included herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the last fiscal quarter that have

materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item is incorporated in this Annual Report by reference to our definitive proxy statement pursuant
to Regulation 14A, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal
year ended September 30, 2019.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all employees, including our executive officers and
directors. A copy of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics may be obtained at the Investor Relations section of our website,
www.powellind.com, or by written request addressed to the Secretary, Powell Industries, Inc., 8550 Mosley Road, Houston, Texas
77075. We will satisfy the requirements under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding disclosure of amendments to, or waivers from,
provisions of our code of ethics that apply to the chief executive officer, chief financial officer or controller by posting such
information on our website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated in this Annual Report by reference to our definitive proxy statement pursuant
to Regulation 14A, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal
year ended September 30, 2019.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated in this Annual Report by reference to our definitive proxy statement pursuant
to Regulation 14A, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal
year ended September 30, 2019.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated in this Annual Report by reference to our definitive proxy statement pursuant
to Regulation 14A, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal
year ended September 30, 2019.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated in this Annual Report by reference to our definitive proxy statement pursuant
to Regulation 14A, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal
year ended September 30, 2019.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits. Financial Statement Schedules

1. Financial Statements. Reference is made to the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements at Item 8 of this Annual Report.

2. Financial Statement Schedule. All financial statement schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, or the required
information is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included
elsewhere in this Annual Report.

3. Exhibits.

Number Description of Exhibits

3.1 — Certificate of Incorporation of Powell Industries, Inc. filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware
on February 11,2004 (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our Form 8-A/A filed November 1, 2004, and incorporated herein
by reference).

3.2 — Amended and Restated By-laws of Powell Industries, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our Form 8-K filed October
12,2012, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.1 — Description of Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan (filed as Exhibit 10 to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended October 31, 1984, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.2 — Powell Industries, Inc. Directors’ Fees Program (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
October 31, 1992, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.3 — Powell Industries, Inc. Executive Severance Protection Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to our Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.4 — Powell Industries, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.9 to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended October 31, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.5 — Banking facilities between HSBC Bank plc and Switchgear & Instrumentation Limited and Switchgear &
Instrumentation Properties Limited dated September 12, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 10.16 to our Form 10-K for the

fiscal year ended October 31, 2005, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.6 — Lease Agreement between the Company and C&L Partnership, Ltd. dated April 19, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.2
to our Form 8-K filed August 9, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.7 — Employment Agreement dated as of May 8, 2012 between the Company and Milburn E. Honeycutt (filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.8 — Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of April 26, 2012, between Powell PowerComm Inc., as
Borrower, Powell Industries, Inc., Nextron Limited, PPC Technical Services Inc., as Guarantors, and HSBC
Bank Canada, as Lender (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012, and
incorporated herein by reference).

109 — Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of January 15, 2014, between the Company and Kapsch TrafficCom IVHS,
Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed January 17, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).

*10.10 — Amended and Restated Powell Supply Agreement dated as of December 30, 2013, between the Company and
General Electric Company (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 10-Q filed February 5, 2014 and incorporated
herein by reference).

10.11 — 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 10-Q filed May 7, 2014 and incorporated herein
by reference).

10.12 — Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to our Form
10-Q filed May 7, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference).
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Number

Description of Exhibits

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

**10.25

**21.1

*%23.1

**31.1

**31.2

**x32.1

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to our
Form 10-Q filed May 7, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement under 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to our
Form 10-Q filed May 7. 2014 and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to our Form
10-Q filed May 7, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement under 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.7
to our Form 10-Q filed May 7. 2014 and incorporated herein by reference).

2014 Non-Employee Director Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.8 to our Form 10-Q filed May 7, 2014
and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under 2014 Non-Employee Director Equity Incentive Plan (filed
as Exhibit 10.9 to our Form 10-Q filed May 7, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference).

Renewed banking facilities between HSBC Bank plc and Powell (UK) Limited dated October 20, 2014 (filed

as Exhibit 10.48 to our Form 10-K filed December 3. 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).

Amending Agreement to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, effective as of March 31, 2015, between
Powell Canada Inc., Powell Industries, Inc., Nextron Limited, PCG Northern Services Inc. and HSBC Bank
Canada (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 10-Q filed May 6, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference).

Employment Agreement dated September 29, 2016, between the Company and Brett A. Cope (filed as Exhibit
10.1 to our 8-K filed September 30, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference).

Employment Agreement effective November 5. 2018 by and between the Company and Michael W. Metcalf
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed November 1, 2018 and incorporated herein by reference).

Consulting and Advisory Services Agreement effective January 5, 2019 by and between the Company and Don
R. Madison (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed December 21,2018 and incorporated herein by reference).

First Amendment to Consulting and Advisory Services Agreement effective May 6, 2019 by and between the
Company and Don R. Madison (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed May 8, 2019 and incorporated herein

by reference).

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated September 27,2019, by and between the Company, as Borrower,

certain subsidiaries of the Company identified therein, as Guarantors, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative

Agent, Swingline Lender and L/C Issuer, the Lenders party thereto and BofA Securities, Inc., as Sole Lead
Arranger and Sole Bookrunner.

Subsidiaries of Powell Industries, Inc.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a).

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Number Description of Exhibits
**%32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
* Portions of this exhibit have been omitted based on a request for confidential treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such omitted portions have been filed separately with the Commission.
*x Filed herewith.
ok Furnished herewith.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

POWELL INDUSTRIES, INC.
By: /s/ Brett A. Cope
Brett A. Cope

President and Chief Executive
Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the date indicated:

Signature Title

/s/Brett A. Cope Chairman of the Board
Brott A. C President and Chief Executive Officer
et A Lope (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/Michael W. Metcalf Executive Vice President

Michacl W Motcalr Chief Financial Officer
1chae clea (Principal Financial Officer)

. Vice President
/s/Milburn Honeycutt Chief Accounting Officer
Milburn Honeycutt Corporate Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/Thomas W. Powell Chairman Emeritus of the Board
Thomas W. Powell Director

/s/ Christopher E. Cragg

Direct:
Christopher E. Cragg frector
/s/ P L. Eld
S eny o Director
Perry L. Elders
/s/ Bonnie V. Hancock .
- Director
Bonnie V. Hancock
/s/ James W. McGill .
- Director
James W. McGill
/s/ John D. White .
- Director
John D. White
/s/ Richard E. Williams Director

Richard E. Williams

Date: December 5, 2019
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